
1 of 3 

ADJOURNED MEETING OF THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

November 18, 2015 10:00 AM 

Board Room, 2nd Floor of the Airport Terminal Building 
200 Fred Kane Dr. Suite #200 

Monterey Regional Airport 

(Unless you are a public safety official, please turn off your cell phone or place it on vibrate mode during the 
meeting.  Thank you for your compliance.) 

A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

C. COMMUNICATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

1. 10 Years of Service

Name   Department   Position  
Kenneth Griggs  Operations    Operations Manager 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Any person may address the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board at this time.  Presentations should not 
exceed three (3) minutes, should be directed to an item NOT on today’s agenda, and should be within the 
jurisdiction of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board.  Though not required, the Monterey Peninsula 
Airport District Board appreciates your cooperation in completing a speaker request form available on the staff 
table. Please give the completed form to the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Secretary. Comments 
concerning matters set forth on this agenda will be heard at the time the matter is considered.) 

E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS (10:15AM – 10:30AM Estimated) 

(The Consent Agenda consists of those items which are routine and for which a staff recommendation has been 
prepared.  A Board member, member of the audience or staff may request that an item be placed on the deferred 
consent agenda for further discussion.  One motion will cover all items on the Consent Agenda.  The motion to 
approve will authorize the action or recommendation indicated.) 

Approve 1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 14, 2015

Accept 2. Annual Financial and Compliance Report For the Year Ended June 30, 2015, 
prepared by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Certified Public Accountants

Approve 3. Fleet Management Policy



2 of 3 

F. DEFERRED CONSENT AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS 

G. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS                     (10:30AM – 10:45AM Estimated) 

(The board receives department reports which do not require any action by the board)  

H.       REGULAR AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS        (10:45AM-11:45AM Estimated) 

Presentation 1. Monthly Update on the Runway Safety Area (RSA) Project by Kimley-Horn 
and Associates 

Adopt 2. Ordinance 916, an Ordinance to Repeal and Replace 911 Regulating the Operation 
of Commercial Passenger Vehicles Other Than Taxicabs at the Monterey Regional 
Airport

Adopt 3. Resolution No. 1653, a Resolution Approving Submission of FY 2016-21 
Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP); Approve Submittal to FAA; 
Authorize the Executive Director to Execute All Supporting Documents

I. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS           (11:45AM –12:00PM Estimated) 

(Report on meetings attended by Board Members at Monterey Peninsula Airport District’s expense - AB1234) 

a. Standing Committees:
i. Local Jurisdiction Liaison Directors Miller & Searle 
ii. Budget and Finance Directors Miller & Sabo  
iii. Air Service, Marketing, Community Relations Directors Leffel & Nelson 

b. Ad-Hoc Committees:
i. Community Affairs Directors Sabo & Leffel  
ii. Airport Property Development & Leases Directors Nelson & Miller 
 

iii. Noise Mitigation Directors Sabo & Nelson 

c. Liaison/Representatives:
i. Local Agency Formation Commission Director Leffel    Alt: Searle  
ii. Regional Taxi Authority Director Leffel    Alt: La Pier 
iii. Transportation Agency for Monterey County Director Sabo    Alt: Nelson  
iv. Water Management District (Policy Advisory) Director Leffel    Alt: Searle 
v. Special Districts Association Liaison Director Miller  

J. CLOSED SESSION   (1:00PM –1:30PM Estimated) 

1. POTENTIAL LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)) the Board will meet with
the Executive Director and District Counsel regarding potential litigation – one case.



3 of 3 

K.        RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION                                          
 
 
L. PENDING REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 

• Presentation about developing a “Dig Once” policy 
• Update on the plan to cool the terminal holding room  

 
 

M. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE AGENDAS 
  
(Any Board member may request the Board of Directors to instruct staff to report back to the Board at a future meeting 
concerning any matter or place a matter of business on a future agenda. Approval of such requests will be made by motion.) 
 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

AGENDA DEADLINE 
 
All items submitted by the public for possible inclusion on the Board Agenda or in the Board packet must be 
received by 5:00 P.M. on the Friday before the first Wednesday of the month.  This agenda is subject to revision 
and may be amended prior to the scheduled meeting.  A final Agenda will be posted outside the District Offices 
in the Terminal Building at the Monterey Regional Airport 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Upon request and where feasible, the Monterey Peninsula Airport District will provide written agenda materials 
in appropriate alternate formats, or disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in public meetings. In order to allow the District time 
within which to make appropriate arrangements, please submit a written request containing a brief description 
of the materials requested and preferred alternative format or auxiliary aid or service desired as far as possible 
in advance of the meeting. Requests should be sent to the District Secretary at 200 Fred Kane Drive, Suite 200, 
Monterey, California 93940.  



1 of 7 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS              October 14, 2015 10:00AM, BOARD ROOM 

A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  

Chair Sabo called to order the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at 9:55am. Directors Miller and 
Searle were present. Director Leffel arrived at 10:00am. The following District officers were present: 
Board Secretary Posey, Auditor Merritt, Executive Director La Pier and District Counsel Huber. Director 
Nelson was absent.  

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Director Searle led the Pledge of Allegiance 

C. COMMUNICATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

Director Miller announced that he attended the ACI-NA Annual Conference & Exhibition, October 4-7, 
2015 in Long Beach and will have a written report to present at a future meeting.  

1. 15 Years of Service

Name   Department   ____    Position   
Joseph Aten   Maintenance    Maintenance Lead 

2. 10 Years of Service

Name   Department   ____   Position   
Jerry Merritt Finance & Administration  Accounting Manager/Controller 

Mike La Pier, Executive Director, presented item C.1 & C.2.  He thanked Joe Aten and Jerry Merritt 
for their years of dedicated service with the district.   

3. Jennifer Hickerson, Public Relations/Marketing Coordinator was selected and awarded the
Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce Volunteer of the Month for August 2015.

Mike La Pier, Executive Director, presented item C.3. He announced that Jennifer Hickerson was 
awarded the Chamber of Commerce Volunteer of the Month. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Richard Ruccello –President, Casanova Oak Knolls Neighborhood Association, indicated that he has 
taken some noise complaints from residents who are hearing back-up beepers and other construction 
noise. He also said the neighborhood was quite upset about the massage parlor on the Northside and 
they wanted to know how long the Airport District knew about the business before it was closed down. 



2 of 7 

E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS 

(The Consent Agenda consists of those items which are routine and for which a staff recommendation has been 
prepared.  A Board member, member of the audience or staff may request that an item be placed on the deferred 
consent agenda for further discussion.  One motion will cover all items on the Consent Agenda.  The motion to 
approve will authorize the action or recommendation indicated.) 

Approve 1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 9, 2015

Director Miller moved to approve Item E.1.  Director Searle seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. Director Leffel abstained due to not being present at the meeting of September 9, 2015. 

F. DEFERRED CONSENT AGENDA - ACTION ITEMS 

None 

G. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS    
 
(The board receives department reports which do not require any action by the board) 

H.   REGULAR AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS 

Presentation 1. Update on Local FAA Noise Issues; Airport District Activities Regarding Same 

Mike La Pier, Executive Director, and Ken Griggs, Operations Manager, presented Item H.1. Mike La 
Pier, Executive Director, asked the board to authorize Chair Sabo to send a letter to Congressman 
Sam Farr on behalf of the District requesting assistance regarding recent changes to 
Approach/Departure procedures and Noise Impacts.  

Lori Balance, Gatzke Dillon & Ballance, addressed the environmental review requirements and FAA 
discretion.  

Public Comments: 

Richard Ruccello, President, Casanova Oak Knolls Neighborhood Association, indicated that public 
safety and early turns are the main issue that should be addressed. Thirty-years ago there was a 
“clear zone” but since then the community has grown and moved into that clear zone. Ground safety 
is key. He named several ground safety events that have happened around the airport over the past 
years. He said he would like to be part of the solution with the airport to help stress the importance of 
ground safety.  

Mike Brassfield, Casanova Oak Knolls Neighborhood Association, stated that the Oak Knolls 
neighborhood is full of crows. He stated that one time there was at least 2,000 crows in his area. He 
expressed concern that an event of a bird strike with a plane during take-off, and while in a turn over 
his neighborhood, would create a disastrous situation. He said that safety is the first issue and noise 
is the secondary issue. He applauds and is in support of the District sending a letter to Congressman 
Sam Farr.  

Robert Yohe, resident on Euclid Street, indicated he is here today because of safety. He said that he 
is also concerned about the potential of bird strikes. He said pilots should be required to begin the turn 



3 of 7 

after they have passed highway 1. He asked the District to include the word “safety” in the letter and 
that the District should file for a waiver. He is concerned about the residents that live, and people who 
work, directly under the flight path. He is very concerned about the elementary school and the park 
that is located right beneath the flight path.     

Karen Congar, resident on Euclid Street, expressed her concern and stated she is right under the new 
flight path and often wonders if the planes are going to clear her two story house. She is also very 
concerned about the safety of herself and her neighbors.  

The board gave Chair Sabo and Executive Director, Mike La Pier the authority to send the letter on 
behalf of the District as long as the letter addresses the safety concerns brought forth by the public.  

Presentation 2. Monthly Update on the Runway Safety Area (RSA) Project by Kimley-Horn 
and Associates 

Bob Hamilton, Kimley Horn & Associates, and Chris Morello, Planning Manager/Grants, presented 
Item H.2.  

Presentation 3. Update on Status of Airport Master Plan, Recommended Development Alternative   
and Public Outreach Efforts; Report on the California Environmental Quality Act 
Process and Initiation of Environmental Review 

Lori Balance, Gatzke Dillon & Ballance, and Jim Harris, Coffman & Associates, presented Item H.3. 

Presentation 4. Report on Assessment of Airport Northside Wells; Need for Options Analysis 

Shelley Glennon, Planning Manager/Environmental, presented Item H.4. 

Pass to Print 5.   Ordinance 916, an Ordinance to Repeal and Replace 911 Regulating the Operation 
 of Commercial Passenger Vehicles Other Than Taxicabs at the Monterey Regional 
 Airport  

Director Leffel moved to Pass to Print Ordinance 916. Director Miller seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a roll call vote of 4-0.  

  ORDINANCE NO. 916 

ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE 911 
REGULATING THE OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL  

PASSENGER VEHICLES OTHER THAN TAXICABS AT THE 
MONTEREY REGIONAL AIRPORT 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 
DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Definitions.  Unless specifically defined otherwise herein, or unless a 
different meaning is apparent from the context, the following words or phrases have the 
meanings set forth below.  Words or phrases that are not defined in this ordinance, but that 
are defined in the California Penal Code, have the meanings set forth therein. 



4 of 7 

“Airport” means the Monterey Peninsula Airport and all lands owned or operated by 
the Monterey Peninsula Airport District for Airport purposes or activities.  “Airport” includes all 
improvements, facilities and appurtenances. 

“Commercial Passenger Vehicle” means any motor vehicle carrying or conveying 
passengers for hire or commercial purposes, including but not limited to passenger stages, 
passenger charter party carriers, limousines, shuttles, hotel, motel and similar courtesy 
vehicles, Transportation Network Company (“TNC”) vehicles, but does not mean taxicabs 
operating in conformity with the requirements of any unexpired and unterminated agreement, 
contract, license, permit or other written authorization issued by the District for such activity. 

“District” means the Monterey Peninsula Airport District. 

“Fiscal Year” means a year commencing on July 1 and ending on the following June 
30. 

“Executive Director” means the Executive Director of the Airport and District. 

“Person” shall include the singular and the plural and shall also mean and include any 
individual, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock association, club, partnership, 
joint venture, society or any other form of association or organization, public or private or body 
politic and includes any trustee, receiver, committee, assignee or other representative or 
employee thereof. 

“Solicitation” means initiating or engaging in a conversation regarding ground 
transportation services with any person on the Airport for the purpose of seeking passengers 
or customers for a commercial passenger vehicle operator;  employing, inducing, arranging 
for or allowing any person to initiate or engage in a conversation regarding ground 
transportation services with any other person on the Airport for the purpose of seeking 
passengers or customers for a commercial passenger vehicle operator; engaging in any 
conduct or activity intended to or apparently intended to ask, implore or persuade a passenger 
or potential passenger to alter his or her previously chosen mode of ground transportation or 
commercial passenger vehicle operator, delivering literature on the Airport discussing or 
describing ground transportation services to be provided by a commercial passenger vehicle 
operator to any person on the Airport;  or offering ground transportation services provided by 
a commercial passenger vehicle operator to any person while on the Airport.  “Solicitation” 
does not include actions by employees of any airline in arranging for transportation for any 
passenger of such airline. 

“Terminal Building” means all buildings and structures located within the Airport and 
open to the public for the purpose of flight ticket purchase, public lobby, waiting, baggage 
check-in and those other services related to public air travel. 

SECTION 2.  Repeal and Cancellation of Prior Ordinances.  Ordinance No. 911 
entitled “An Urgency Ordinance To Repeal and Replace Ordinance 910 [Ordinance 
Regulating the Operation of Commercial Passenger Vehicles Other than Taxicabs at the 
Monterey Peninsula Airport]” is hereby repealed. Section 7.2 of Ordinance No. 796 “An 
Ordinance Defining and Prohibiting Miscellaneous Criminal Conduct at the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport” (which section generally prohibited solicitation by commercial passenger 
vehicle operators, but excepted picking up pre-reserved customers) is hereby repealed. All 



5 of 7 

other ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance, to the extent of such 
conflict and no further, are each hereby repealed. 

SECTION 3.  Operation of Commercial Passenger Vehicles.  Operation of 
commercial passenger vehicles at the Airport is regulated as follows: 

3.1. Written Permission Required.  It is unlawful for any person to use any 
commercial passenger vehicle to pick up and/or drop off any passenger for hire or for any 
other commercial purpose at the Airport except with the advance written permission and 
approval of the District, and in conformity with the requirements of any unexpired and 
unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization issued by the 
District for such activity.   

3.2. Solicitation Prohibited.  It is unlawful for any commercial passenger 
vehicle operator to engage in solicitation at the Airport, except as otherwise provided by a 
valid and unexpired or unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other written 
authorization issued by the District. 

3.3. Parking in Front of Terminal Building Prohibited.  Except for loading and 
unloading passengers, it is unlawful for any commercial passenger vehicle operator to park 
any commercial passenger vehicle on any roadway adjacent to the terminal building, except 
as otherwise provided by a valid and unexpired or unterminated agreement, contract, license, 
permit or other written authorization issued by the District. 

SECTION 4.  Fees.  The Board will annually establish fees and charges for the 
operation of commercial passenger vehicles and the effective date of such fees and charges 
by Resolution, or by agreement with individual commercial passenger vehicle operators. 
However, the frequency of adoption of a resolution establishing fees and charges is within the 
sole discretion of the Board. 

Any commercial passenger vehicle operator holding a valid and unexpired or 
unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization issued by the 
District may apply for temporary authorization to add one or more commercial passenger 
vehicles to serve anticipated increases in passenger volume during a golf tournament, music 
festival, convention or other special event.  The application shall (a) identify the special event 
along with its starting and ending dates, (b) identify the vehicle or vehicles to be temporarily 
authorized to operate at the Airport, (c) include evidence of ownership of or a copy of the 
rental or other agreement by which the operator is acquiring the use of such vehicle or 
vehicles, and (d) include proof of insurance meeting the requirements set forth in Section 5 
below. 

SECTION 5.  Insurance.  Except as may otherwise may be provided in the agreement, 
contract, license, permit or other written authorization for a commercial passenger vehicle to 
operate at the Airport, there shall be maintained in full force and effect, at no cost to the 
District, for each commercial passenger vehicle operating at the Airport comprehensive form 
automobile liability insurance and workers compensation insurance where applicable.  The 
minimum terms and limits for such policies shall be as determined by the Executive Director, 
or such other increased limits as may be required by the California Public Utilities Commission 
for those operators over which that commission has regulatory control.  Each such policy of 
insurance shall be issued by an insurance organization authorized by the California Insurance 



6 of 7 

Commissioner to transact the business of insurance within the State of California or by an 
insurer expressly approved in writing by the Executive Director.  Each applicant for an 
agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization to operate a commercial 
passenger vehicle at the Airport shall furnish appropriate certificates of insurance meeting the 
satisfaction of the Executive Director upon application and each holder of an agreement, 
contract, license, permit or other written authorization to operate a commercial passenger 
vehicle at the Airport shall furnish a substitute certificate of insurance meeting the satisfaction 
of the Executive Director no later than 30 days prior to any policy expiration date.   

SECTION 6.  Penalties.  Each person who violates any provision of this ordinance is 
guilty of an infraction and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by: 

(a) a fine not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250) for a first violation 
within any one-year period; 

(b) a fine not exceeding Five Hundred Dollars ($500) for a second violation 
within any one-year period;  or  

(c)  a fine not exceeding One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each additional 
violation within any one-year period. 

SECTION 7.  Severability.  This ordinance shall supplement and be in addition to the 
other regulatory codes, statutes and ordinances heretofore or hereafter enacted by the 
District, the State of California or any other legal entity or agency having jurisdiction.  This 
ordinance shall not be interpreted or construed to permit any activity where or when it is 
otherwise restricted by other applicable laws.  Nothing in this ordinance is intended to make 
punishable any act or acts which are prohibited by any law of the state or federal government. 
Nothing in this ordinance shall authorize the maintenance of any public or private nuisance. 
If any provision, clause, sentence or paragraph of this ordinance or the application thereof to 
any person or circumstance shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other 
provisions of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 8.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days from and after 
the date of its adoption. 

PASSED TO PRINT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY 
PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT:  This 14th day of October, 2015, by the following role call 
vote: 

AYES: DIRECTORS:     Leffel, Miller, Searle, Sabo 
NOES: DIRECTORS: 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:  
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:     Nelson 

I. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 

(Report on meetings attended by Board Members at Monterey Peninsula Airport District’s expense - AB1234) 



7 of 7 

a. Standing Committees:
i. Local Jurisdiction Liaison Directors Miller & Searle 
ii. Budget and Finance Directors Miller & Sabo  
iii. Air Service, Marketing, Community Relations Directors Leffel & Nelson 

b. Ad-Hoc Committees:
i. Community Affairs Directors Sabo & Leffel  
ii. Airport Property Development & Leases Directors Nelson & Miller 
 

iii. Noise Mitigation Directors Sabo & Nelson  

c. Liaison/Representatives:
i. Local Agency Formation Commission Director Leffel    Alt: Searle  
ii. Regional Taxi Authority Director Leffel    Alt: La Pier 
iii. Transportation Agency for Monterey County Director Sabo    Alt: Nelson  
iv. Water Management District (Policy Advisory) Director Leffel    Alt: Searle 
v. Special Districts Association Liaison Director Miller  

J. CLOSED SESSION 

1. POTENTIAL LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)) the Board will meet with
the Executive Director and District Counsel regarding potential litigation – one case.

K.   RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

Chair Sabo announced that no action was taken in closed session. 

L. PENDING REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

• Presentation about developing a “Dig Once” policy
• Update on the plan to cool the terminal holding room

M. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE AGENDAS 
 
No new items were added 

N. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 4:28pm 



1 

AGENDA ITEM:  E-2 
DATE:  November 18, 2015 

TO: Board of Directors, Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
FROM: Michael La Pier, Executive Director 
SUBJ: Accept “Annual Financial and Compliance Report For the Year Ended June 30, 

2015”, as audited by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Certified Public Accountants 

BACKGROUND. Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Certified Public Accountants (MGO), per 
contractual arrangement and in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
(GAAS), conducted a full audit of the District’s regulatory compliance and financial reporting for 
Fiscal Year 2015 (July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015) and has prepared the audited financial 
statement report.  Staff reviewed the work of the auditors and prepared the Management 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that appears as pages 3 – 17 in the audited financial 
statements.    

STAFF ANALYSIS. In the “Opinion” paragraph on page 1, MGO opines that the financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects and in compliance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP), the financial position of the District at June 30, 2015.  MGO has 
issued an “unmodified” auditors report (p. 55) for federal awards, indicating it provides its 
opinion without any modifications/qualifications.  An unmodified report is the strongest auditing 
opinion that a CPA firm can render.  Additionally, in the “Opinion” paragraph on page 59, MGO 
reports that the District has complied with all requirements of the passenger facility charge 
program. 

The Finance Committee met with Mr. Eugene Ma, Audit Partner, MGO on October 22, 2015, 
reviewed the draft final audited report, and recommend the Board accept the final audit report. 
The audited financial statements are provided for formal acceptance by the Board of Directors. 

SOURCE OF FUNDS. Not Applicable  

IMPACT ON REVENUES. Not Applicable 

IMPACT ON OPERATIONS. Not Applicable 

CONTINGENCY. Not Applicable 

RECOMMENDATION. By motion, accept the Annual Financial and Compliance Report 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015, prepared by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, Certified Public 
Accountants. 



 

 

 
MONTEREY PENINSULA  

AIRPORT DISTRICT  
 

Annual Financial and  
Compliance Report 

 
For the Year Ended  

June 30, 2015 
 
 

 



 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA  
AIRPORT DISTRICT 

 

 

Board of Directors 
at June 30, 2015 

 
 
 
 

Name   Office      Term Expires 
 
William J. Sabo   Chair     December 2016 
 
Mary Ann Leffel   Vice-Chair    December 2016 
 
Carl M. Miller   Director    December 2018 
 
Matthew Nelson   Director    December 2018 
 
Richard D. Searle   Director    December 2016 
 



 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 
 



 

 
 

MONTEREY PENINSULA  
AIRPORT DISTRICT 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 

Table of Contents 
 Page 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ....................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information - Unaudited) ................... 3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 Statement of Net Position.................................................................................................................... 18 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ........................................................ 19 
 Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................................... 20 
 Notes to Financial Statements ............................................................................................................. 22 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
 Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ...................................... 44 
 Schedule of Contributions – Pension Plans ......................................................................................... 45 
 Schedule of Funding Progress – Other Postemployment Benefits ...................................................... 46 
 
FEDERAL COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ......................................... 47 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program and  

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 .................................. 49 
 
Federal Awards:  
 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ..................................................................................... 51 
 Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ................................................................. 53 
 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs – Federal Awards .......................................................... 55 
 Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  ...................................................................................... 57 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Applicable Requirements of the  

Passenger Facility Charge Program and Internal Control Over Compliance  
in Accordance With Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies .................................. 59 

 
Passenger Facility Charge:  
 Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Revenues and Expenditures .................................................. 61 
 Notes to the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Revenues and Expenditures .............................. 63 
 
  



 

 
 

This page left intentionally blank. 



www.mgocpa.com

Certified   
Public 
Accountants 

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

Oakland

Los Angeles

Century City

Newport Beach

San Diego

 Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
2121 N. California Blvd., Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

 

1 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Airport District  
Monterey, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
(District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the District as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective July 1, 2014, the District adopted the provisions 
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition 
for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 



 

2 

Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, the 
schedule of contributions – pension plans, and the schedule of funding progress – other postemployment 
benefits as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
any assurance.  
 
Other Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of passenger facility 
charge revenues and expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Federal 
Aviation Administration and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of passenger facility charge revenues and 
expenditures are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards and the schedule of passenger facility charge revenues and expenditures are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 9, 2015, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
Walnut Creek, California  
November 9, 2015 
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

3 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is provided by the Monterey Peninsula Airport 
District (District) in compliance with requirements established by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 
State and Local Governments (GASB 34). It is intended to serve as an introduction to the financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 (FY15).  The information presented is to be read in conjunction 
with the financial statements, footnotes and supplementary information found in this report. 
 
Mission Statement 
 
The mission of the Monterey Regional Airport is to provide the region convenient commercial and general 

aviation access to the national air transportation system, operate the airport in a safe, efficient, sustainable 
and fiscally responsible manner, and develop the airport to meet future needs, opportunities and challenges. 
 
Overview of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District   
 
The District was created on March 22, 1941, by the passage of State Senate Bill No. 1300 that authorized 
an independent public airport district, which would qualify for federal funds.  The District’s enabling act 
was revised effective January 1, 2007; the revision updated the archaic language and provisions to allow 
the District to function more efficiently.  The District is governed by five directors elected by voters at large 
residing in Monterey, Pacific Grove, Del Monte Forest, Pebble Beach, Carmel-by-the-Sea, greater Carmel, 
the west end of Carmel Valley, Del Rey Oaks, Sand City, and Seaside.  The District employs an Executive 
Director as its Chief Executive and a Corporate Legal Counsel. 
 
The Monterey Regional Airport (Airport), 501 acres, has two parallel, east-west runways.  The primary 
runway, 10R/28L, is 7,175 feet long and 150 feet wide.  It is used by commercial and business aircraft and 
is equipped for instrument landings with a Category I instrument landing system on runway 10R.  The 
secondary runway, 10L/28R, is 3,500 feet long and 65 feet wide, used solely by general aviation aircraft.  
 
During this fiscal year, five commercial airlines served the airport with scheduled flights.  Alaska, American 
Eagle, United Express and US Airways Express provided non-stop service to four gateway hubs:  Los 
Angeles, Phoenix, San Diego and San Francisco.  Allegiant operated non-stop service, two days per week 
to Las Vegas.  Looking forward to FY16, the merger of American Airlines and US Airways will reduce the 
number of commercial air carriers serving the Airport. 
 
There is a strong general aviation presence on the airfield.  Two full-service fixed-based operators, Del 
Monte Aviation and Monterey Jet Center, and other aviation tenants provide aircraft line services, fuel, 
aircraft storage, maintenance, flight instruction, and aircraft rentals. 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

4 

Overview of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District (Continued) 
 
The District is structured as an enterprise fund.  District financial statements are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting; revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred.   
Costs are recovered through airport rents from tenants, landing and fuel fees, and other charges.  Capital 
improvements are funded from three sources:  (1) Federal grants from the Federal Aviation 
Administration’s (FAA) Airport Improvement Program (AIP) derived from a 10% tax on the airline tickets, 
(2) Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) collected for each enplaned passenger at the point of origin and one 
intermediate-stop, and (3) District contributed funds.  Capital assets are capitalized and depreciated, except 
land, over their useful lives.  Please refer to the notes to the financial statements for a summary of the 
District’s significant accounting policies. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The District’s financial statements and supplemental schedules are presented after the MD&A.  This 
information, taken collectively, is designed to provide readers with an understanding of the District’s 
financial position and changes in financial position. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the four reported as Net Position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in total net position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s 
financial position. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the 
District’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal years.  All changes in net position are reported 
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses reported for certain items in this statement may result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents.  Only transactions that affect 
the District’s cash accounts are recorded in this statement.  The reconciliation at the bottom of this statement 
indicates the difference between cash flows from operating activities and operating income. 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding 
of the data provided in the financial statements. 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

5 

Financial Highlights 
 
 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceed liabilities and deferred inflows of 

resources by $59,834,837 at June 30, 2015. 
  

 In FY15, the District acquired the capital assets listed below: 
 

 Replaced one (1) police vehicle ($37,546), 
 Replaced one (1) maintenance pick-up truck ($39,143), and 
 Replaced two (2) sedans with all electric vehicles ($81,226). 

 
 The District moved aggressively to complete its Runway Safety Area (RSA) project; a congressionally-

mandated project that will be completed in the second quarter of FY16. 
 

 The District met its obligations and reduced its taxable pension obligation bond principal to $2,291,000. 
 
 In the airport industry, one standard measure of a commercial airport’s size is the number of annual 

enplanements, i.e., passengers flying from the airport on commercial airlines.  Enplaned passengers 
during the six-year period, FY10 through FY15, are presented below in Table I. 

 
Table I 

 

 
  

7/09 18,934      7/10 18,732      7/11 16,912      7/12 18,364      7/13 18,756      7/14 15,980      
8/09 18,512      8/10 17,582      8/11 16,204      8/12 18,501      8/13 17,680      8/14 16,622      
9/09 16,581      9/10 16,657      9/11 16,765      9/12 17,462      9/13 17,798      9/14 15,280      

10/09 16,536      10/10 16,542      10/11 17,247      10/12 18,778      10/13 18,307      10/14 17,102      
11/09 16,045      11/10 15,192      11/11 15,213      11/12 17,675      11/13 16,235      11/14 15,168      
12/09 16,191      12/10 14,512      12/11 14,678      12/12 16,962      12/13 16,362      12/14 13,882      
1/10 13,068      1/11 12,153      1/12 12,403      1/13 14,516      1/14 14,157      1/15 12,728      
2/10 13,119      2/11 12,839      2/12 13,585      2/13 14,747      2/14 14,191      2/15 13,010      
3/10 15,825      3/11 14,419      3/12 14,445      3/13 18,015      3/14 16,886      3/15 15,823      
4/10 16,951      4/11 14,509      4/12 15,262      4/13 17,563      4/14 16,278      4/15 15,926      
5/10 17,542      5/11 16,821      5/12 16,529      5/13 17,619      5/14 17,932      5/15 16,336      
6/10 18,513      6/11 16,409      6/12 18,207      6/13 18,588      6/14 16,302      6/15 15,110      

197,817    186,367    187,450    208,790    200,884    182,967    

FY 2010 FY 2014 FY 2015
TOTAL ENPLANEMENTS:  FISCAL YEARS  2010 - 2015

FY 2013FY 2012FY 2011



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

6 

Financial Highlights (Continued) 
 
 FY15 enplanements decreased 8.9% to 182,967 due to scheduling and equipment changes by the 

airlines.  Commercial air carrier operations are summarized below: 
 
 Alaska Airlines operated non-stop daily flights on 76-seat Bombardier turbo-props (Q-400) to San 

Diego (SAN). 
 
 American Eagle, wholly-owned by American Airlines, provided non-stop flights to Los Angeles (LAX) 

on 50-seat Canadair regional jets (CRJ-200).  These flights were operated by SkyWest Airlines. 
 

 United Express, also operated by SkyWest Airlines, provided non-stop flights to San Francisco (SFO) 
and to Los Angeles (LAX) on 50-seat Canadair regional jets (CRJ-200). 

 
 US Airways Express, flown by SkyWest Airlines or Mesa Airlines, provided non-stop service to 

Phoenix (PHX) on 50-seat regional jets (CRJ-200) or 86-seat regional jets (CRJ-900).   
 

 Allegiant Travel Company offered scheduled non-stop service two days per week (Thursday - Sunday 
or Friday - Monday) to Las Vegas (LAS) on 166-seat MD-83/88 jets.  It increased its scheduled service 
to three and four days weekly during March and April 2015.  Allegiant combines ultra-low airfares 
with lodging and entertainment packages. 

 
 Republic operated as a non-scheduled, charter airline flying “gambler specials” to Nevada gaming 

resorts on 99-seat ERJ-190 jets. 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

7 

Financial Highlights (Continued) 
 
Chart A presents the monthly enplanements for FY15, in total and for the scheduled commercial airlines 
that serve the Airport. 
 

Chart A 
 

 
  

1,830 1,875 1,704 1,726 1,730
1,713 1,272 1,475

1,798 1,863 1,905 1,855

3,234 3,434
3,213

3,398

2,229
1,950 1,844 1,988

2,363
2,632 2,733

2,534

5,536
5,891

5,593
5,917 5,765

4,999
4,768 4,907

4,802

5,218
5,572

5,073

3,902 4,023
3,562

4,683

4,128 4,193
3,571

3,634

5,293

4,522
4,840

4,377

1,393
1,306 1,129 1,287 1,273

986
1,186

912
1,471 1,650

1,204 1,214
85 93 79 91 43 41 87 94 96 41 82 57

15,980
16,622

15,280

17,102

15,168

13,882

12,728
13,010

15,823

15,926

16,336

15,110

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

13,000

14,000

15,000

16,000

17,000

18,000

19,000

JULY
2014

AUGUST
2014

SEPTEMBER
2014

OCTOBER
2014

NOVEMBER
2014

DECEMBER
2014

JANUARY
2015

FEBRUARY
2015

MARCH
2015

APRIL
2015

MAY
2015

JUNE
2015

EN
PL

AN
EM

EN
TS

MONTH

FY15  ENPLANEMENTS  BY  AIRLINE

Alaska American Eagle United Express/Skywest U S Airways Express/Skywest

Allegiant Air Republic Airlines Total Emplanements



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

8 

Summary of Net Position 
Table II  

 
A summarized comparison of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources, and net position as of June 30 follows: 
 

2015
%  

Change 2014

Current and other assets 8,379,219$       29.4% 6,477,569$       
Capital assets, net 65,590,110       52.4% 43,037,582       

Total assets 73,969,329       49.4% 49,515,151       

Deferred outflow of resources 362,999            n/a -                   

Debt outstanding 2,291,000         -10.7% 2,565,000         
Other liabilities 10,459,574       232.0% 3,150,014         

Total liabilities 12,750,574       123.1% 5,715,014         

Deferred inflow of resources 1,746,917         n/a -                   

Net investment in capital
assets 62,064,776       49.0% 41,656,195       

Restricted - unspent
 Passenger Facilities Charges 1,140,291         -37.5% 1,824,123         

Unrestricted (3,370,230)       -1153.8% 319,819            
Total net position 59,834,837$     36.6% 43,800,137$     

 
 
Changes in Net Position 
 
Net Position increased $16,034,700 from FY14 to FY15 primarily due to the District’s investment in capital 
assets, specifically runway safety area improvements, which were grant funded.  Conforming to 
requirements of GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, funds 
received from operating grants and PFCs are included in the financial statements, referred to as “Other 
Nonoperating Revenue” and grants restricted for capital purposes are reported as “Capital Contributions.”  
In FY15, the District received $26,334,749 from FAA AIP grants and $724,686 from PFCs to fund 
architectural design, engineering design, and construction costs.  Other Liabilities increased $7,309,560 
from FY14 to FY15 primarily due to the implementation of a new accounting pronouncement for the 
accounting and reporting for pensions, see below, and the accrual of capital project costs that were paid 
subsequent to FY15. 
 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

9 

Implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and 71 
 
In FY15, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB 
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.  The objective of the statements is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local government entities for pensions.   
 
GASB Statement No. 68 establishes uniform standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources and expense/expenditures.  For defined benefit pension plans, the statement 
identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used.  Recognition and disclosure requirements for 
employers with liabilities to a defined benefit plan are detailed.  Note disclosure and required supplementary 
information have been addressed. 
 
The District is a “cost-sharing employer”; an employer whose employees are provided with defined benefit 
pensions through a cost-sharing multiple-employer (pooled) pension plan.  Additional information is 
contained in the notes to these financial statements.  Due to the limited available information, FY14 amounts 
have not been restated for GASB Statement No. 68. 
 
Operating Revenues   
 
An airport functions as a landlord.  District income is derived from fees and lease income.  Total operating 
revenues for the year were $8,351,300, an increase of 5.2% from FY14, primarily due to rate increases. 
 
The Airport’s commercial success is dependent on the local community’s demand for commercial air 
service and the airlines’ ability, capacity, and willingness to meet those demands.  Just over fifty-five 
percent (55.2%) of the Airport’s operating revenues are collected from the airlines that pay user fees to the 
airport (8.2%) and from concessions that provide services to the passengers (47.0%).  In FY15, concession 
revenue generated by rental car operations and parking operations grew.  Rental car concession revenue 
increased 4.2% and parking concession revenue increased 9.0%. 
 
Enplanements in FY15 totaled 182,967 (Table I), an 8.9% decrease when compared to the previous fiscal 
year (FY14).  The decrease was a direct result of commercial air carrier schedule reduction.  While the 
Airport has experienced an increase in the percentage of local passengers choosing to fly from MRY, the 
air carrier schedule changes reduced the number of available flights in our market. 
 
The line item, “Terminal Concessions & Leases”, includes lease income from many sources:  concessions 
such as The Golden Tee Restaurant and the Gifts and More gift shop; commercial airlines that rent ticket 
counters, offices, baggage make-up, hold rooms and baggage claim areas; five rental car companies (Avis, 
Budget, Enterprise, Hertz, and National); long and short-term parking lots and in-terminal advertising.  This 
category of revenue increased 3.7% when compared to FY14. 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

10 

Operating Revenues (Continued) 
 
General Aviation activities generated 20.7% of Total Operating Revenues.  Corporate aviation and general 
aviation tenants remit landing fees, fuel fees, and rental income for leased land, hangars, tie-downs, aircraft 
parking aprons, and offices.  These revenues increased 6.1% from FY14 levels.  
 
Non-aviation tenants produced 19.9% of Total Operating Revenues, an increase of 8.8% compared to FY14. 
 
Table III presents a comparison of operating revenues for Fiscal Years 2015 and 2014.  Chart B provides a 
graphic representation of operating revenues. 

 
Table III  

 
  

Landing Fees 526,088$          6.3% 522,746$          6.6%
Apron Fees 76,744             0.9% 73,135             0.9%
Remain Over Night Fees 86,486             1.0% 96,057             1.2%
Terminal Concessions & Leases 3,921,487         47.0% 3,780,275         47.6%
Subtotal - Commercial Aviation 4,610,805$       55.2% 4,472,214$       56.3%
General Aviation 1,091,164$       13.1% 1,091,317$       13.7%
Landing Fees 327,355           3.9% 270,288           3.4%
Fuel Flowage Fees 314,130           3.8% 271,116           3.4%
Subtotal - General Aviation 1,732,649$       20.7% 1,632,721$       20.6%
Non-Aviation Tenants 1,658,366$       19.9% 1,524,922$       19.2%
Other Revenue 349,480           4.2% 307,855           3.9%
Total 8,351,300$       100% 7,937,711$       100%

FISCAL YEARS 2015 & 2014 OPERATING REVENUES
2015 2014



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

11 

Chart B 
 

 
 

 

Operating Expense Before Depreciation and Amortization 

 
Operating expense before depreciation and amortization in FY15 decreased 1.1% compared to FY14.   
 
Table IV presents salary and payroll expense by airport department.  The airport provides a wide variety of 
services and staffs its own police department.  Salaries and payroll costs decreased $1,062,909 (21.3%) 
compared to FY14.  Salaries and payroll costs, measured as a percentage of total operating expense before 
depreciation and amortization, were 51.3% in FY15 and 65.4% in FY14.  A significant portion of this 
decrease in FY15 was directly attributable to the elimination of the District’s fire department.  Effective 
January 1, 2014, the District purchases Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) and other fire related 
services through a contract with the City of Monterey. 
  

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000

 $5,500,000

 $6,000,000

 $6,500,000

 $7,000,000

 $7,500,000

 $8,000,000

 $8,500,000

1 2

FISCAL YEAR

OPERATING REVENUES

Other Revenue

Non-Aviation Tenants

Fuel Flowage Fees

GA - Landing Fees

General Aviation

Terminal Concessions & Leases

Remain Over Night Fees

Apron Fees

Landing Fees
20142015



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

12 

Operating Expense Before Depreciation and Amortization (Continued) 

 
Table IV 

 
 
Table V compares operating expense for FY15 and FY14.  Chart C provides a graphic representation of 
operating expenses. 
 
Finance & Administration operating expense (27.1% of total FY15 operating expense) decreased 1.1% 
from FY14.  This reduction was primarily due to not filling a position after the departure of an employee. 
 
Planning & Development operating expense (5.3% of total FY15 operating expense) decreased 15.8% when 
compared to FY14.  The decrease was due to cost capitalized as part of the Runway Safety Area (RSA) 
project.  
 
Maintenance & Custodial Services operating expense (17.3% of total FY15 operating expense) increased 
0.6% from FY14.  The majority of the District’s facilities, structures and infrastructure are old and require 
more intensive maintenance and more frequent repairs.  Expenses have been effectively controlled by 
emphasizing preventive maintenance. 
 
Airport Operations operating expense (6.7% of total FY15 operating expense) decreased 1.0% when 
compared to FY14.   
 
Police Department operating expense (17.3% of FY15 total operating expense) increased 2.8% over FY14 
levels.  In part, the escalating costs were due to mandated security requirements.  These increases have been 
partially mitigated by the use of part-time police officers.  The District was awarded a “Law Enforcement 
Officer (LEO) Reimbursement Grant” from the U. S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS). 
 
  

Finance & Administration 985,162$           25.1% 1,021,475$         20.5%
Planning & Development 436,065             11.1% 424,153             8.5%
Maintenance & Custodial Services 916,916             23.4% 902,299             18.1%
Airport Operations 284,213             7.2% 275,730             5.5%
Police Department 1,177,588          30.0% 1,184,250          23.8%
ARFF / Fire Department 123,077             3.1% 1,178,023          23.6%
Total 3,923,021$         100% 4,985,930$         100%

2015 2014
FISCAL YEARS 2015 & 2014 SALARY & PAYROLL EXPENSE



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

13 

Operating Expense Before Depreciation and Amortization (Continued) 
 
ARFF / Fire operating expense (23.8% of total FY15 operating expense) decreased 5.4% compared to 
FY14.  The District eliminated its fire department.  District firefighters were absorbed by the City of 
Monterey.  Effective January 1, 2014, (in FY14) the City of Monterey provides the airport with Aircraft 
Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) services through contract. 
 
Board of Directors operating expense (2.5% of total FY15 operating expense) increased 67.3% compared 
to FY14.  The Board of Directors are elected (at large) during the November general election; thereby the 
District incurs elections expense every other year.  The District had election expense in FY15. 
 

Table V 

FISCAL YEARS 2015 & 2014 OPERATING EXPENSE BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Finance & Administration 2,077,095$          27.1% 2,101,150$          27.2%
Planning & Development 404,446               5.3% 480,206               6.2%
Maintenance & Custodial Services 1,327,588            17.3% 1,319,428            17.1%
Airport Operations 511,290               6.7% 516,573               6.7%
Police Department 1,320,157            17.3% 1,283,698            16.6%
ARFF / Fire Services 1,818,645            23.8% 1,921,509            24.8%
Board of Directors 192,796               2.5% 115,245               1.5%
Total 7,652,017$          100% 7,737,809$          100%

2015 2014

 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

14 

Operating Expense Before Depreciation and Amortization (Continued) 
 

Chart C  
 

 
 

 

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000
4,500,000
5,000,000
5,500,000
6,000,000
6,500,000
7,000,000
7,500,000
8,000,000

1 2

FISCAL YEAR

OPERATING EXPENSE

Board of Directors

ARFF / Fire Services

Police Department

Airport Operations

Maintenance & Custodial Services

Planning & Development

Finance & Administration

20142015



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

15 

Actual Financial Results – FY15 and FY14 Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 
 
Table VI compares actual operating revenues, operating expenses, and the change in net position for 
FY15 and 14. 

Table VI 

FY 2015 FY 2014
Operating Revenues

Commercial Aviation - Fees 689,318$               691,938$               
General Aviation - Fees 327,355                 270,288                 
Terminal Concessions and Leases 3,921,487              3,780,275              
Heavy General Aviation 973,230                 911,844                 
Light General & Other Aviation Tenants 432,064                 450,589                 
Non-Aviation Tenants 1,658,366              1,524,922              
Other Operating Revenue 349,480                 307,855                 

Total Operating Revenues 8,351,300              7,937,711              

Operating Expenses
Finance & Administration 2,077,095              2,101,150              
Planning & Development 404,446                 480,206                 
Maintenance & Custodial Services 1,327,588              1,319,428              
Airport Operations 511,290                 516,573                 
Police Department 1,320,157              1,283,698              
ARFF Services 1,818,645              1,921,509              
Board of Directors 192,796                 115,245                 

Total Operating Expenses 7,652,017              7,737,809              

Operating Income before Depreciation 699,283                 199,902                 

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 5,363,050              5,453,461              

Net Operating Loss (4,663,767)             (5,253,559)             

Other Revenue (Expense), net 27,144,819            4,065,870              

Change in Net Position 22,481,052            (1,187,689)             

Beginning Net Position, as Previously Reported 43,800,137            44,987,826            
Restatement of Beginning Net Position (6,446,352)             

Beginning Net Postion, as Restated 37,353,785            

Ending Net Position 59,834,837$          43,800,137$          



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

16 

Capital Asset and Debt Activity 
 
Total District assets are $73,969,329; deferred outflows of resources are $362,999, total liabilities are 
$12,750,574, and deferred inflows of resources are $1,746,917, the difference is $59,834,837.  The current 
ratio is 1.57.  The District has financed its airport capital improvements by aggressively pursuing FAA 
Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grants to fund its capital projects.  Capital assets, net of depreciation, 
and Intangible assets, net of amortization, are presented below: 
 

2015 2014
Tangible assets, net

Land 1,784,717$                    1,784,717$                    
Land improvements 13,944,714                    16,393,815                    
Buildings 9,104,544                      10,301,888                    
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 847,009                         952,608                         
Construction in progress 36,498,003                    8,740,340                      

Total 62,178,987                    38,173,368                    

Intangible assets, net 3,411,123                      4,864,214                      

Total capital assets - net 65,590,110$                  43,037,582$                  

 
Debt 
 
The Monterey Peninsula Airport District 2012 Taxable Pension Obligation Bond was issued on June 27, 
2012.  The bond’s par value, coupon rate, and term are $3,077,000, 4.40% and 10 years, respectively.  Bond 
proceeds were used to eliminate the “side accounts” associated with the District’s CalPERs pension 
obligations and employer retirement expense rates.  Additional information pertaining to this bond can be 
found in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

17 

Future Impacts   
 
FY 2015 was a complex year for the District.  Airlines continue to reduce excess capacity, which results in 
fewer flights and fewer available seats for our market.  Fewer flights results in fewer passengers.  This 
results in fewer parked cars, fewer car rentals and fewer meals consumed in the restaurant.  Due to several 
one-time revenues and by increasing rates, operating revenues were 5.2% higher than in FY14.   
 
The District continues its dialogue with the airlines now serving the Airport to expand service.  The District 
promotes the introduction of new service to cities in the Midwest, Northwest and Southern California.  
Through the Department of Transportation Small Community Air Service Development Program 
(SCASDP) a commercial air carrier that introduces new air service to the Pacific Northwest may receive 
up to $500,000 in revenue guarantees.  The Airport and its community partners may also provide up to 
$214,000 in marking and advertising.  This opportunity expires on January 15, 2016. 
 
Heavy general aviation (GA), which rebounded in FY14, continued the trend in FY15.  GA landing fee 
revenue was 21.1% higher than FY14.  Fuel flowage fees were 15.9% higher than FY14.  However, light 
general aviation space and hangar rentals decreased 4.1% compared to FY14.  These trends are expected to 
continue. 
 
Non-aviation rents increased 8.8% in FY15 and continued a three-year upward trend.  This is an area that 
the Airport can grow. 
 
Given the historical performance data and current economic indicators, the forecast for FY 2016 is for 
financial results very similar to FY15.  Rates adopted for FY16 were increased to ensure sufficient operating 
revenue. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report has been designed to provide a general overview of the District’s operations and 
financial position for anyone interested in its finances.  Questions concerning any of the information should 
be addressed to the attention of the Executive Director, Monterey Peninsula Airport District, 200 Fred Kane 
Drive, Suite 200, Monterey, CA 93940. 
 



ASSETS
Current assets:

Unrestricted:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 979,217$             
Investments (Note 2) 1,674,062            
Accounts receivable, net 4,010,084            
Interest receivable 6,092                    
Prepaid and other assets 58,729                 

Total unrestricted current assets 6,728,184            

Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 1,418,188            
Investments (Note 2) 232,847               

Total current assets 8,379,219            
Capital assets (Note 3)

Nondepreciable 38,282,720          
Depreciable, net 27,307,390          

Total capital assets, net 65,590,110          
Total assets 73,969,329          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension contributions (Note 7) 362,999               

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accrued liabilities (Note 4) 3,831,075            
Unearned revenues 73,840                 
Accrued compensated absences (Note 5) 65,110                 
Due to the City of Monterey (Notes 5 and 10) 19,966                 
Pension obligation bond payable, current portion (Note 5) 286,000               
Funds held in trust 141                       

Total current liabilities 4,276,132            

Noncurrent liabilities:
Security deposits 316,711               
Unearned revenues - rent received in advance from tenants 295,059               
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion (Note 5) 176,037               
Due to the City of Monterey, net of current portion (Notes 5 and 10) 139,763               
Net pension liability (Note 7) 5,177,620            
OPEB liability (Note 8) 364,252               
Pension obligation bonds payable, net of current portion (Note 5) 2,005,000            

Total noncurrent liabilities 8,474,442            
Total liabilities 12,750,574          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (Note 7) 1,746,917            

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 62,064,776          
Restricted - unspent Passenger Facilities Charges 1,140,291            
Unrestricted (3,370,230)           

Total net position 59,834,837$        

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 18



OPERATING REVENUES
Commercial aviation 689,318$             
General aviation 327,355               
Terminal leases and concessions 3,921,487            
Heavy general aviation 973,230               
Light general aviation and other aviation tenants 432,064               
Non-aviation tenants 1,658,366            
Other operating revenue 349,480               

Total operating revenues 8,351,300            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Finance and administration 2,077,095            
Planning and development 404,446               
Maintenance and custodial services 1,327,588            
Airport operations 511,290               
Police department 1,320,157            
Fire department 1,818,645            
Board of Directors 192,796               
Depreciation and amortization 5,363,050            

Total operating expenses 13,015,067          

Operating loss (4,663,767)           

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND (EXPENSES)
Passenger Facility Charges 724,686               
Operating grants 116,800               
Investment income 19,452                 
Interest expense (109,868)              

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 751,070               

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Grants from government agencies 26,393,749          

Change in net position 22,481,052          

NET POSITION

Beginning of year, as previously reported 43,800,137          
Restatement of beginning net position (Notes 2 and 10) (6,446,352)           

Beginning of year, as restated 37,353,785          

End of year 59,834,837$        

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 19



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 8,118,479$          
Payments to vendors (3,696,568)          
Payments for employees pension benefits (316,804)             
Payments to employees (3,443,974)          

Net cash provided by operating activities 661,133               

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from operating grants 116,800               

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 116,800               

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital grants and Passenger Facilities Charges 25,213,513          
Acquisition of capital assets (25,880,849)        
Interest paid on long-term debt (109,868)             
Principal payments on long-term debt (274,000)             

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (1,051,204)          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received 19,955                 
Investments matured 644,239               

Net cash provided by investing activities 664,194               
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 390,923               
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,006,482            
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,397,405$          

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating loss (4,663,767)$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

 provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,363,050            
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (281,096)             
Note receivable 2,569                  
Prepaid and other current assets 27,980                 

Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued liabilities 139,600               
Unearned revenues 51,705                 
Accrued compensated absences (73,226)               
Due to the City of Monterey (19,966)               
Security deposits (5,999)                 
OPEB liability 5,097                  
Net pension liability and related pension deferred outflows and inflows

of resources 115,186               
Net cash provided by operating activities 661,133$             

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 20



Non-cash capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of capital assets in accrued liabilities 3,525,334$          

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
 CLASSIFCATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
  Unrestricted 979,217$             
  Restricted 1,418,188            

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,397,405$          

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

 21



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

22 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

(a) Reporting Entity  
 
The Monterey Peninsula Airport District (District) was established under the provisions of 
Article 133 of the General Law of the State of California on March 22, 1941, for the purpose of 
operating and maintaining a public airport. Originally, it consisted of 37 acres, which were 
contributed to the District by the City of Monterey.  The District has acquired additional land 
through grants and purchases in subsequent years and now totals 501 acres.  For financial reporting 
purposes, the District’s basic financial statements include all financial activities that are controlled 
by or are dependent upon actions taken by the District’s Board of Directors.  There are no 
component units considered for inclusion in the District’s financial reporting entity.  
 

(b) Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  
 
The District’s financial activities are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus, using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP).   
 
The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating revenues and 
expenses.  Operating revenues generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with an organization’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal 
operating revenues of the District are charges to airlines, concessionaires, parking and property 
rental.  Operating expenses of the District include personnel costs, administrative expenses and 
depreciation and amortization on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses, except for capital contributions, 
which are presented separately. 
 
When restricted resources meet the criteria to be available for use and unrestricted resources are 
also available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted 
resources, as needed. 
 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments 
with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.   
 

(d) Investments  
 
The District reports its investments at fair value in the accompanying financial statements and the 
corresponding change in fair value of investments is reported in the year in which the change 
occurs.  The District invests its surplus cash in certificates of deposits with original maturity dates 
of three months or longer and obligations of the State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF). 
 

(e) Receivables  
 

Receivables from tenants are recorded when the revenues are earned under the accrual method of 
accounting and accounted for using the allowance method. The allowance is estimated using 
historical collection experience as well as management’s judgment about collectability of 
individual receivables. The allowance at June 30, 2015 was $10,000. 
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

23 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
(f) Prepaid Expenses  

 
Prepaid amounts are allocated to expense prorated in the periods in which the benefit is received. 
 

(g) Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets are stated at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not 
available.  Gifts or contributions of such assets are stated at estimated fair value on the date 
received.  The District’s policy is to capitalize assets with a value in excess of $5,000 for furniture, 
equipment and vehicles and $25,000 for land, facilities and improvements.  
 
Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, 
which range as follows: 
 

Land improvements 10 - 40 years
Facilities and improvements 10 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 3 - 20 years  

 
Intangible assets include the District’s logo, noise study, master plan update and easements related 
to soundproofing of neighboring residences. These have been amortized on the straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are 10 – 40 years. Depreciation is not provided 
on construction-in-progress until construction is complete and the asset is placed in service. 
 

(h)  Employee Benefits  
 
Fringe benefits such as pension, health insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance, and paid-
time-off, are provided to employees per the District’s current human resources policies or as 
determined by respective agreements between the District and the respective employees’ collective 
bargaining agreements.     
 

(i)  Accrued Compensated Absences  
 
The District’s personnel policy provides full-time employees with vacation and sick leave in 
varying amounts, and at termination or retirement, employees are paid for accumulated (vested) 
vacation. Employees are paid up to a maximum of one month’s salary for accumulated sick leave 
upon retirement; employees separated under circumstances other than retirement are not paid for 
accumulated sick leave. Accordingly, compensation for vacation and sick leave is charged to 
expense as earned by the employee, and accumulated, unpaid vacation and sick leave, which is 
payable upon an employee’s termination or retirement, is recorded as a liability. 
 

(j)  Unearned Revenues  
 
Unearned revenues represent amounts collected before year-end, which were not earned as of year-
end.  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

24 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

(k)  Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources  
 

Deferred outflows and inflows resources related to pensions are certain changes in total pension 
liabilities and fiduciary net position that are to be recognized in future pension expense.  Excluding 
deferred pension contributions, the remaining pension related deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources are amortized over the remaining expected average remaining service lifetime 
(approximately four years) or five years, depending on the nature of items. 
 

(l)  Net Position  
 

Net position comprises the various accumulated net earnings from operating income or losses, 
nonoperating revenues and expenses, and capital contributions.  Net position is classified in the 
following three components:  
 

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement 
of those assets.  If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion 
of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net 
investment in capital assets.  Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position 
as the unspent proceeds.  
 
Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by creditors (such 
as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments 
or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
Restricted net position represents unspent Passenger Facility Charges (PFC), which are 
restricted by enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted - This component represents net position that does not meet the definition of 
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” 

 
(m) Passenger Facility Charge 
 

In 1990, Congress approved the Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act, which authorized 
domestic airports to impose a PFC on enplaning passengers. In May 1991, the Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) issued the regulations for the use and reporting of PFCs. PFCs may be used 
for airport projects which meet at least one of the following criteria: preserve or enhance safety, 
security or capacity of the national air transportation system; reduce noise or mitigate noise impacts 
resulting from an airport, or furnished opportunities for enhanced competition between or among 
carriers. 
 
The District was granted permission to begin collection of a $3 PFC effective January 1, 1994. The 
charges, less an administrative fee charged by the airlines for processing, are collected by the 
airlines and remitted on a monthly basis to the District.  Effective July 27, 2001, the District 
received approval from the FAA to increase the PFC charge to $4.50 per enplaned passenger. 
 
Pursuant to governmental accounting standards, the District records PFCs as nonoperating revenue. 
The fees are reserved for specific purposes as defined in the approval letter received from the FAA’s 
administrator.  The District’s applications for PFCs were approved as impose and use. It is the 
position of the District that these receipts should be recognized immediately. 

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

25 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

(n) Operating Grants and Capital Contributions 
 
Certain expenditures for airport capital improvements, airport safety and security operations, are 
significantly funded through the Airport Improvement Program (AIP) of the FAA and 
Transportation Security Administration (TSA), with certain matching funds provided by the 
District. Funding provided under government grants is considered earned as the related allowable 
expenditures are incurred. 
 
Grants awarded by TSA to reimburse certain police department’s costs are reported in the statement 
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as nonoperating revenues.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2015, the District requested and received $116,800 as reimbursement of certain police 
department costs.  Grants for capital asset acquisition, facility development and rehabilitation are 
reported as capital contributions, after nonoperating revenues and expenses.  
 

(o) Use of Estimates 
 

Management of the District has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting 
of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and revenues and 
expenses to prepare these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 

(p) New Accounting Standards Adopted  
 

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the District adopted the following GASB Statements:  
 
 GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment 

of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB Statement No. 68), addresses the accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for pensions.  The provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 separate 
accounting and financial reporting from how pensions are funded and require changes in the 
notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.  Significant changes 
include an actuarial calculation of the total pension liability.  It also includes comprehensive 
footnote disclosure regarding the pension liability, the sensitivity of the net pension liability to 
the discount rate, and pension expense and related deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
disclosures (see Note 8).  When the District implemented this statement in fiscal year 2015, the 
District also implemented GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions 
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB 
Statement No. 71), which resolves transition issues in GASB Statement No. 68.  As of July 1, 
2014, the District restated the beginning net position in the amount of $6,446,352 to record the 
beginning deferred pension contributions and net pension liability. 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

26 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(p) New Accounting Standards Adopted (Continued) 
 

 GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government 
Operations, is intended to improve accounting and financial reporting for state and local 
governments’ combinations and disposals of government operations. This statement provides 
guidance determining whether a specific government combination is a government merger, a 
government acquisition, or a transfer of operations; using carrying values (generally, the 
amounts recognized in the pre-combination financial statements of the combining governments 
or operations) to measure the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources combined in a government merger or transfer of operations; measuring 
acquired assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 
based upon their acquisition values in a government acquisition; and reporting the disposal of 
government operations that have been transferred or sold.  This statement did not have an 
impact on the District’s financial statements.  

(q)  New Accounting Standards To Be Implemented 
 
The Distirct is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the 
financial statements for the following GASB Statements: 

 
 In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, 

which is intended to improve accounting and financial reporting for state and local 
governments’ investments by enhancing the comparability of financial statements among 
governments by requiring measurements of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a 
consistent and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted valuation techniques.  The 
statement also requires that donated capital assets, works of art and similar assets and capital 
assets received in service concession agreements be reported at acquisition value rather than 
fair value. This statement also requires that donated capital assets, works of art and similar 
assets, and capital assets received in service concession agreements be reported at acquisition 
value rather than fair value. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District’s 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

 In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statements 68 and 
Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68 (GASB Statement No. 73), 
which establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that are not within the scope of 
GASB Statement No. 68, as well as for the assets accumulated for the purposes of providing 
those pensions.  GASB Statement No. 73 amends certain provisions of GASB Statement No. 
67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and GASB Statement No. 68 for pension plans and 
pensions that are within their respective scopes.  GASB Statement No. 73 addresses the 
recognition of the total pension liability of such plans and the disclosures necessary for the 
plans that did not meet the definition of GASB Statement No. 68.  GASB Statement No. 73 is 
effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

27 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

(q)  New Accounting Standards To Be Implemented (Continued) 
 

 In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit 
Plans Other Than Pension Plans (GASB Statement No. 74), which establishes new accounting 
and financial reporting requirements for governments whose employees are provided with 
OPEB, as well as for certain nonemployer governments that have a legal obligation to provide 
financial support to OPEB provided to the employees of other entities.  GASB Statement No. 
74 also includes requirements to address financial reporting for assets accumulated for purposes 
of providing defined benefit OPEB through OPEB plans that are not administered through 
trusts that meet the specified criteria.  GASB Statement No. 74 is effective for the District’s 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 

 In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB Statement No. 75), which establishes 
new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans improving the accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for OPEB and provides information 
provided by state and local government employers about financial support for OPEB that is 
provided by other entities.  The statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions and Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Plans.  GASB Statement No. 75 is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 
30, 2018. 

 In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments (GASB Statement No. 76), which 
clarifies the hierarchy of GAAP and reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of 
authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the 
event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified within the 
scope of authoritative GAAP.  GASB Statement No. 76 is effective for the District’s fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2016. 

 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2015 comprised of the following:  
 

Unrestricted:
Deposits with banks 979,217$            
Investments 1,674,062           

Total unrestricted 2,653,279           

Restricted:
Deposits with banks 1,418,188           
Investments 232,847              

Total restricted 1,651,035           

Total cash and investments 4,304,314$         
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

28 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

(a) Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits and Investments 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The District’s investment policy does not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
deposits.  However, the California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the 
total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to 
secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the 
secured public deposits. 
 
Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, the District will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California 
Government Code and the District’s investment policy contains legal or policy requirements that 
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, 
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use 
of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF). 
 

(b) Investments Permitted  
 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California 
Government Code 53601 or the District’s Investment Policy, where the policy is more restrictive.  
The District’s Investment Policy is more restrictive than the California Government Code in that 
the allowed investments are with the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund and 
certificates of deposits, and may not exceed $250,000 per institution in order that the principal 
remain fully insured by the federal government.  The table also identifies certain provisions of the 
California Government Code that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk.   

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Of Portfolio* In One Issuer

FDIC Insured Negotiable and Nonnegotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Year None
$250,000 per 

institution
State of California  Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None

 
*  Excludes amounts held by fiscal agents that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions. 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

29 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

(c) Investments  
 
The following is a summary of the District’s unrestricted investments at June 30, 2015: 
 

Credit Ratings
Fair (Standard &

Value Less than 1 1 - 5 Poor's)
Negotiable certificates of deposits 1,821,239$    796,866$       1,024,373$    Not rated
Local Agency Investment Fund 85,670           85,670           -                 Not rated

Total investments 1,906,909$    882,536$       1,024,373$    

(Maturities in Years)

 

The District is a voluntary participant in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that 
is governed by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Local Investment 
Advisory Board (Board). The Board consists of five members as designated by state statute. The 
fair value of the District’s investment in the LAIF pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF, 
for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance 
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are 
recorded on an amortized cost basis, which is different from the fair value of the District’s position 
in the LAIF pool. LAIF is part of the State’s Pooled Money investment Account (PMIA).  LAIF is 
not rated by rating agencies.  
 
The weighted average maturity of LAIF at June 30, 2015 was 239 days.  The total amount recorded 
by all public agencies in PMIA at June 30, 2015, was approximately $69.6 billion.  Of that amount 
at June 30, 2015, 97.92% was invested in non-derivative financial products and 2.08% in structured 
notes and asset backed securities.   

 

(d) Restricted Cash  
 

At June 30, 2015, cash were restricted for the following:  
 

Cash in Bank Investment Total
Security deposits from tenants 314,064$       -$               314,064$       
Passenger facility charge program 1,101,055      232,847         1,333,902      
Debt service 3,069             -                 3,069             

Total restricted cash and investments 1,418,188$    232,847$       1,651,035$    

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

30 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:   
 

Balance Balance
July 1, Additions/ Disposals/ June 30,

2014 Transfers Transfers 2015
Capital assets, not being depreciated :

Land 1,784,717$         -$                   -$                   1,784,717$         
Construction in progress 8,740,340           27,915,578         (157,915)            36,498,003         

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 10,525,057         27,915,578         (157,915)            38,282,720         

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized:
Intangible assets 21,909,735         -                     -                     21,909,735         
Land improvements 34,307,127         -                     (2,591,470)         31,715,657         
Buildings and improvements 21,213,854         -                     (162,371)            21,051,483         
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 3,658,156           157,915              (203,689)            3,612,382           

Total capital assets, being depreciated 81,088,872         157,915              (2,957,530)         78,289,257         

Less accumulated depreciation/amortization
Intangible assets (17,045,521)       (1,453,091)         -                     (18,498,612)       
Land improvements (17,913,312)       (2,449,101)         2,591,470           (17,770,943)       
Buildings and improvements (10,911,966)       (1,197,344)         162,371              (11,946,939)       
Furniture, equipment and vehicles (2,705,548)         (263,514)            203,689              (2,765,373)         

Less accumulated depreciation (48,576,347)       (5,363,050)         2,957,530           (50,981,867)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 32,512,525         (5,205,135)         -                     27,307,390         

Total capital assets, net 43,037,582$       22,710,443$       (157,915)$          65,590,110$       

 
 
Construction in progress activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:   
 

Balance Completed Balance
July 1, Transferred June 30, 

Projects 2014 Additions to Depreciable 2015
2012-01 RSA - Construction 8,310,231$          21,439,934$        -$                     29,750,165$        
2013-02 Airport Master Plan 430,109               490,808               -                       920,917               
2014-01 RSA - Construction Phase 2 -                       5,820,978            -                       5,820,978            
2015-02 Police Vehicle - Sedan -                       37,546                 (37,546)                -                       
2015-03 Infield Safety Area Rehabilitation - Phase 1 -                       5,943                   -                       5,943                   
2015-04 Pick-Up Truck 3/4T 4WD -                       39,143                 (39,143)                -                       
2015-05 Electric Vehicle 1 - Kia Soul EV -                       40,613                 (40,613)                -                       
2015-06 Electric Vehicle 1 - Kia Soul EV -                       40,613                 (40,613)                -                       

Total 8,740,340$          27,915,578$        (157,915)$            36,498,003$        
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

31 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
At June 30, 2015, intangible assets consist of the following:  
 

Noise safety study and sound proofing easements 21,549,356$       
Master plan 208,440              
Wildlife hazard assessment plan 151,939              

Total intangible assets, gross 21,909,735         
Less accumulated amortization (18,498,612)       

Total intangible assets, net 3,411,123$         

 
NOTE 4 – ACCRUED LIABILITIES  
 
At June 30, 2015, accrued liabilities consist of the following:  
 

Accrued employee benefits 105,467$            
Other accrued expenses 3,725,608           

Total accrued liabilities 3,831,075$         

 
 
NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS  
 
A summary of the changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:  
 

Balance Balance Due in
July 1, June 30, One

2014 Additions Reductions 2015 Year
Accrued compensated absences 314,373$         46,755$           (119,981)$        241,147$         65,110$           
Due to the City of Monterey (Note 10) 179,695           -                   (19,966)            159,729           19,966             
Pension obligation bonds 2,565,000        -                   (274,000)          2,291,000        286,000           

Total 3,059,068$      46,755$           (413,947)$        2,691,876$      371,076$         



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

32 

NOTE 5 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 
 
Pension Obligation Bonds – On June 27, 2012, the District issued Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds for 
the purpose of refinancing the outstanding “side fund” obligations in the amount of $3,077,000 with an 
interest rate of 4.40% per annum. The bonds are subject to mandatory redemption every six months as set 
forth in the Indenture of Trust.  This obligation was incurred to retire a previously unrecorded liability 
between the District’s funded status of the CalPERS plan versus the funded status of the entire risk pool.   
 
The future debt service requirements for the pension obligation bonds at June 30 are as follows:  
 

Year Principal Interest
Total 

Requirement

2016 286,000$        97,658$          383,658$        
2017 299,000          84,920 383,920          
2018 312,000          71,632 383,632          
2019 326,000          57,750 383,750          
2020 341,000          43,230 384,230          
2021-2022 727,000          40,326 767,326          

  Total 2,291,000$     395,516$        2,686,516$     
 

 
Line of Credit – In July 2014, the District entered into a revolving line of credit note with a bank for short-
term financing purposes.  The line of credit provides a maximum amount of $500,000 and has a fluctuating 
interest rate equal to the greater of (a) the Prime Rate plus 0.500% per annum, adjusted daily, or (b) 4.000% 
per annum. The line of credit has an expiration date of June 30, 2017.  There was no amount outstanding 
on the line of credit at June 30, 2015. 
 

NOTE 6 – OPERATING LEASES  
 
A significant portion of the District’s revenue comes from operating leases of which the District is the 
lessor. The District leases parts of the terminal building, parking areas, north side buildings, land, hangars 
and ramps to various businesses and individuals under long-term leases with terms from 5 – 60 years.  
Rental revenues from these operating leases were $2,160,756 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  The 
cost of property held for leasing is not readily determinable. 
 
Future minimum rentals on noncancelable leases as of June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 

2016 2,190,493$     
2017 2,234,305       
2018 2,210,111       
2019 2,254,315       
2020 2,075,986       
2021 - 2025 10,414,998     
2026 - 2030 10,925,860     
2031 - 2035 12,039,646     
2036 - 2040 13,043,968     
2041 - 2045 13,333,570     
2046 - 2050 5,049,436       
2051 - 2054 440,491          

  Total 76,213,179$   



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

33 

NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description - All full-time and certain other qualifying employees of the District are eligible to 
participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund of the State of California’s Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. CalPERS acts as a common 
investment and administrative agent for various local and state governmental agencies within the State of 
California. CalPERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits based on the employee’s years of 
service, age and final compensation.  Employees vest after five years of service. Benefit provisions and 
other requirements are established by State statute and by District resolution.   
 
The State of California passed the California Employee’s Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) which became 
effective on January 1, 2013.  PEPRA changes included the classification of active employees into two 
distinct classifications: classic members and new members.  Classic members represent active members 
hired before January 1, 2013, and retain the pension plan benefits in effect.  New members are active 
members hired on or after January 1, 2013, and are subject to PEPRA. 
 
The District participates in five separate cost-sharing multiple-employer plans with CalPERS:  Safety Fire, 
Safety Police, Miscellaneous, PEPRA Miscellaneous and PEPRA Police, collectively the Plans. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees, and beneficiaries.  
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with 
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  The death benefit 
is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1959 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W 
Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for the plan are applied as specific by the Public Employees’ 
Retirement Law. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, are summarized as follows: 
 

Fire Police
PEPRA 
Police Misc

PEPRA 
Misc

Hire date
 Prior to 
1/1/2013 

 Prior to 
1/1/2013 

 On/after 
1/1/2013 

 Prior to 
1/1/2013 

 On/after 
1/1/2013 

Benefit formula  3% @ 50  3% @ 50  2.7% @ 57  2% @ 55  2% @ 62 

Benefit vesting schedule
 5 years 
service 

 5 years 
service 

 5 years 
service 

 5 years 
service 

 5 years 
service 

Benefit payments
 monthly for 

life 
 monthly for 

life 
monthly for 

life 
monthly for 

life 
 monthly for 

life 

Retirement age 50 & Up 50 & Up 57 & Up 50-63 & Up 62 & Up

Monthly benefits, as a percentage of

eligible compensation 3% 3% 2.7%
1.426%-
2.418% 2%

Required employee contribution rates 9% 9% 11.50% 7% 6.25%

Required employer contribution rates 27.849% 27.849% 11.50% 11.522% 6.25%
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

34 

NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Contributions – The Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that 
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary 
and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for the 
Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The District is required to contribute 
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the employer contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the 
Plans was $466,335. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2015, the District’s reported total net pension liability of $5,177,620 for its proportionate 
shares of the net pension liability.  The District’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share 
of the net pension liability of the cost-sharing plans.  The net pension liability of each of the Plans is 
measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability for each of the Plans used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 
2014 using standard update procedures.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was actuarially 
determined at the valuation date. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plans 
were $5,177,620 as of June 30, 2014, a decrease of $1,735,067 from $6,912,687 as of June 30, 2013.   
 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $431,990.  At June 30, 2015, 
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 316,804$                 -$                         
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 46,195                     -                           
Differences between the employer's contributions and 
    the employer's proportionate share of contributions -                           137,812                   
Net differences between projected and actual earnings 
    on pension plan investments -                           1,609,105                
Total 362,999$                 1,746,917$              

 
  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

35 

NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
At June 30, 2015, the District reported $316,804 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized, as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)
of Resources

2016 (425,181)$                                     
2017 (425,181)                                       
2018 (425,180)                                       
2019 (425,180)                                       

Total (1,700,722)$                                  

Year Ended June 30,

 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, which were 
rolled forward to June 30, 2014, for four plans, PEPRA Police is a new plan, were determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions:  

Valuation Date  June 30, 2013 
Measurement Date  June 30, 2014 
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.50%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, 

and Type of Employment

Investment Rate of Return
7.5% net of pension plan investment and 

administrative expenses, includes inflation

Mortality
Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for 

all Funds  

 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 
valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 
to 2011.  Further details of the experience study can be found on the CalPERS website. 

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

36 

NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent.  To 
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each 
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different 
from the actuarially assumed discount rate.  Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets.  
Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate 
calculation is not necessary.  The long-term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all plans in 
the Public Employees Retirement Fund.  The stress test results are presented in a detailed report named 
“GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the GASB 
Statement No. 68 section. 

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense.  The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in 
this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses.  Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 
basis points.  An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent.  Using 
this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability.  The 
difference in calculation between a 7.5 percent rate and a 7.65 percent rate was not material to the District’s 
financial statements.  
 
CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management 
review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018.  Any changes to the discount rate will 
require CalPERS Board action and proper stakeholder outreach.  For these reasons, CalPERS expects to 
continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB Statement Nos. 67 and 68 
calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year.  CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the 
difference in calculation until such time as it changes its methodology. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.50% was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows.  Such cash flows were 
developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and 
as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound 
returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-
block approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value 
of benefits was calculated for each fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single 
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one 
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent 
to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

37 

NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  
These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.  

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class  Allocation Year 1-10 (a) Year 11+ (b)

Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.50% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.00% used for this period  

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plans as of the measurement date, calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) 
or 1 percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate:  
 

Decrease Rate - 1% Current Discount Decrease Rate + 1%
(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

Safety Fire Plan  $               4,537,484  $               2,636,738  $               1,070,605 
Safety Police Plan                   2,061,609                   1,198,003                      486,430 
Miscellaneous Plan                   2,391,509                   1,342,269                      471,500 
PEPRA Miscellaneous                          1,086                             610                             214 
PEPRA Police -                            -                            -                            

Total  $               8,991,688 $               5,177,620 $               2,028,749 

Proportionate Share of 
   Net Pension Liability

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report, 
copies of which may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Offices, Lincoln Plaza East, 400 Q Street, 
Sacramento, California 95814.   
 

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

38 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
Plan Description – The District provides a defined benefit healthcare plan (Retiree Health Plan). The 
Retiree Health Plan provides healthcare insurance for eligible retirees that elect to keep healthcare insurance 
coverage through the CalPERS Health Benefit Program upon retirement. Benefit provisions are established 
by the Board of Directors. 
 
Funding Policy – The District’s contribution for each miscellaneous and public safety fire retiree is the 
CalPERS mandatory employer portion of the health care premium. The District’s contribution for each 
public safety police retiree is up to 90% of the health care premium (including the mandatory employer 
portion). The District currently contributes enough funds to the Retiree Health Plan to satisfy current 
obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The District does not have any assets segregated and restricted to 
provide funds towards the Retiree Health Plan.  The contributions made to fund the Retiree Health Plan for 
the year ended June 30, 2015 was $36,104. 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The District’s annual other postemployment benefit 
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The 
District has elected to calculate the ARC and related information using the alternative measurement method 
permitted by GASB Statement No. 45 for employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan 
members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover 
normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over the 
remaining period of 28 years. The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB 
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in its net OPEB obligation to the 
Retiree Health Plan: 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related information for the 
Retiree Health Plan based on an actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2014, are as follows: 

 
Police Fire Miscellaneous Total

Annual required contribution 18,490$         4,707$           21,176$         44,373$         
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,065             983                4,136             7,184             
Adjustment to the annual required contribution (2,977)            (1,417)            (5,962)            (10,356)          
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 17,578           4,273             19,350           41,201           
Contributions made (16,695)          (7,465)            (11,944)          (36,104)          
Change in net OPEB obligation 883                (3,192)            7,406             5,097             
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 105,146         48,369           205,640         359,155         
Net OPEB obligation, end of year 106,029$      45,177$        213,046$       364,252$      

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

39 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for the current and prior two years are as follows:  
 

Percentage of
Annual Annual OPEB Net

Year OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation

6/30/2015 41,201$              87.6% 364,252$            
6/30/2014 44,102                51.3% 359,155              
6/30/2013 44,529                40.5% 337,697               

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress - The table below indicates the funded status of the Retiree Health 
Plan as of July 1, 2014.    
 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 797,740$         
Actuarial value of plan assets -                   

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 797,740$         

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets)/AAL 0.0%
Approximate annual covered payroll (active plan members) 2,846,530$      
UAAL as a percentage of annual covered payroll 28%

 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities 
for benefits.  
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of 
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members 
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce 
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the 
long-term perspective of the calculations. 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

40 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
The following summarizes other significant methods and assumptions used in valuing the AAL and annual 
required contribution under the Retiree Health Plan. 
 
 Actuarial valuation date – the actuarial valuation date was as of July 1, 2014.  

 Actuarial cost method – the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining 
amortization period at July 1, 2014, was twenty-seven years.  

 Percentage of retirees electing coverage – Historically, only about 28% of the District’s total retirees 
elect medical coverage. This is factored into our calculations to arrive at the Annual Required 
Contributions and the Actuarial Accrued Liability.  

 Retirement age for active employees – Based on the historical average retirement age for the covered 
group, active plan members were assumed to retire at age 60, or at the first subsequent year in which 
the member would qualify for benefits.  

 Marital Status – Marital status of members does not apply as only the member is covered under the 
plan.  

 Morality – Life expectancies at the calculation date are based on the most recent mortality tables 
published by the National Center for Health Statistics website (www.cdc.gov). The calculation of OPEB 
liability for each year is based on the assumption that all participants will live until their expected age 
as displayed in the mortality tables.  

 Turnover – The probability that an employee will remain employed until the assumed retirement age 
was determined using non-group-specific age-based turnover data provided in Table 1 in paragraph 35 
of GASB Statement No. 45. In addition, the expected future working lifetimes of employees were 
determined using Table 2 in paragraph 35c of GASB Statement No. 45.  

 Payroll increase – Changes in the payroll for current employees are expected to increase at a rate of 
approximately 1.0% annually.  

 Discount rate – The calculation uses an annual discount rate of 2.0%. This is based on the assumed 
long-termed return on plan assets or employer assets.  

 Healthcare cost trend rate – The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premium is 3.5% 
based on the average medical care component of the Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U) for the past 
three years.  

 Health insurance premiums – 2014 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as a basis for 
calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.  

 Medicare coordination – Medicare was assumed as the primary payer for current and future retirees at 
age 65.  

 
The calculation of the District’s other postemployment benefits cost is calculated as follows: 
 
 Medical benefits for police retirees is $634 per month for those under age 65 and $397 for those age 65 

and over.  Retirees with 10 years of service with the District after attaining age 50 receive 3% per year 
of service up to 90% of the premium annually over the $119 per month minimum required District 
contribution.  The District does not contribute toward the retiree’s spouse/partner or dependent(s) 
medical premium. 

 Medical benefits paid by the District for fire and miscellaneous retirees is the minimum required 
contribution of $119 per month.  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

41 

NOTE 8 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
The number of retirees annually drawing these benefits is determined as follows: 

 Current retirees drawing benefits, plus potential retirees (assuming a retirement age of 60 and 28% of 
retirees electing coverage under the Retiree Health Plan).  

 Capped at life expectancy based on mortality tables published by the National Center for Health 
Statistics.  

 
On an ongoing basis, the District will be reviewing its assumptions, comparing them against actual 
experience, and recalculating the needed funding with the goal of paying for postemployment benefits out 
of interest earned on designated funds. 
 
NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year.  The District has not settled claims in excess of 
the District’s insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 
 
The District purchased coverage through an insurance broker for property and commercial liabilities and 
losses incurred above its deductible limits.  Different insurance carriers cover various categories of coverage 
and are listed separately.  Claims liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is 
not an exact amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, 
newly discovered information and damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to 
consider the effects of inflation, recent claims settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-
outs), economic and social factors, newly discovered information and changes in the law.  



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

42 

NOTE 9 – RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 
 
The District’s deductibles and maximum coverage follows: 
 

Coverage
Coverage 

(aggregate)

Buildings & Business Personal Property
Except Tools & 

Maintenance Equipment 10,000$              
Tools & Maintenance 

Equipment 1,000                  
Boiler & Machinery 10,000                27,588,661         

Automobile 500                     1,000,000           
Fire Truck Physical Damage 10,000,000         
Airport Liability 50,000,000         

5,000                  per occurrence
10,000                per aggregate

5,000                  per occurrence
10,000                per aggregate

Combined 10,000                per occurrence
Public Officials Liability 100,000              5,000,000           
Fiduciary Liability 5,000                  1,000,000           
Crime 5,000                  500,000              

39,958,570$       

Deductible

Bodily Injury & Property

Personal Injury

 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance  
 
The District purchases workers’ compensation insurance through Special District Risk Management 
Authority (SDRMA) with the following coverage level: 
 

Coverage

Workers' Compensation Statutory
Employers' Liability 5,000,000$        (per occurrence)

Coverage

 
 
NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  
 
Legal – The District is, from time to time, involved in lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of District 
operations that, in the opinion of management, will not have material effect on results of operations.  
 
Grants and Contracts - The District participates in various federally assisted grant programs that are 
subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlements to these resources are generally conditional 
upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal and other 
regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from 
a review or audit may become a liability of the District; however, as of the date of this report, no such 
reviews exist, and accordingly, no liabilities are reflected in the accompanying basic financial statements. 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

43 

NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 
 
Fire Services – On October 31, 2013, the District and the City of Monterey (City) entered into an agreement 
to share resources to provide fire and emergency services to the area of Monterey along the Highway 68 
corridor.  The City agreed to assume the difference between the actual cost of providing fire and emergency 
services, which amount will fluctuate over the term of the agreement and the Fire Service Fee charged by 
the City to the District.  The initial term of the agreement is from January 1, 2014, through July 1, 2019, 
with an automatic extension in five-year terms unless either party gives written notice of its intent to allow 
the agreement to lapse. The District will provide access to the property and equipment to enable the City to 
provide services to the District as well as to provide local mutual aid and assistance and the City will provide 
fire department administration, fire prevention, incident response within the geographic boundaries of the 
District, and Statewide mutual aid and assistance services.   
 
In consideration for these services, the District agreed to compensate the City with an initial fee for the 
period from January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2016 in the amount of $1,650,000 per fiscal year (Fire Service 
Fee), payable monthly, and ongoing fees with increases based on the consumer price index and transferred 
its unused and unpaid compensated absence balance (including sick leave) in the amount of $226,233 of 
which $159,729 remains outstanding at June 30, 2015.  The District will pay off the balance due to the City 
at a rate of 10% per year for a period of ten years until the City is 100% compensated for the initial value 
of the sick leave balance. 
 
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

44 

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
As of June 30, 2015 

 
 

Fire Police Misc PEPRA Misc

Proportion of net pension liability 0.04237% 0.01925% 0.02157% 0.0001%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 2,636,738$    1,198,003$    1,342,269$    610$            

Covered-employee payroll 980,690$      608,199$      1,726,492$    40,566$        

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 
a percentage of covered-employee payroll 268.87% 196.98% 77.75% 1.50%

Plan fiduciary net position 
as a percentage of total pension liability 78.83% 78.83% 81.15% 81.15%

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions - There were no change in benefits.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, therefore only 
one year of information is shown.

** Information related to the PEPRA Police plan were not available.

Change in benefit terms - The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan 
changes which occurred after June 30, 2013 as they have minimal cost impact.  This applies for voluntary benefit 
changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit.



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

45 

Schedule of Contributions – Pension Plan 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 

 

Fire** Police PEPRA Police Misc PEPRA Misc

Contractually required contribution (actuarially determined) -$             122,881$      12,462$        161,160$      20,301$        

Contractually in relation to the actuarially determined contributions -              (122,881)       (12,462)        (161,160)       (20,301)         

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             

Covered-employee payroll -              441,240        108,363        1,398,722     324,809        

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.00% 27.85% 11.50% 11.52% 6.25%

 
**  As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements, the fire services agreement between the City and 

District, the District did not incur payroll expenses for fire personnel during FY15.  The District is 
awaiting an update of the annual required contribution from CalPERs before making further 
contributions. 

 
Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date: 6/30/2013

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age NoEntry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level percent Level percent of payroll, closed
Remaining Amortization Period 19 years as of the valuation date
Asset Valuation Method 15 year smooth market
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00%

Mortality Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, therefore only 
one year of information is shown.

Investment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increase
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and Type of Employment
7.5% net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, includes 
inflation

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 

 

46 

The schedule of funding progress presented below provides a consolidated snapshot of the District’s ability 
to meet current and future liabilities with the other postemployment benefit plan assets. 
 
Schedule of Funding Progress – Other Postemployment Benefits  
 

(B) (F)
Actuarial UAAL as a

(A) Accrued (C) (D) (E) Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Funded Annual of Covered
Valuation Value of (AAL) - AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll

Date Assets Entry Age [(B) - (A)] [(A) / (B)] Payroll [(C) / (E)]

7/1/2014 -$             797,740$      797,740$      0.0% 2,846,530$     28.0%
7/1/2011 -               542,029        542,029        0.0% 3,772,911       14.4%
7/1/2009 -               1,135,375     1,135,375     0.0% 3,108,482       36.5%  

 
The decrease in AAL between the FY 2009 and FY 2011 actuarial valuation reports was primarily due to 
refinements in actuarial assumptions used by the District.



www.mgocpa.com

Certified   
Public 
Accountants 

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

Oakland

Los Angeles

Century City

Newport Beach

San Diego

 Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
2121 N. California Blvd., Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

 

47 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 

Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 
Board of Directors  
Monterey Peninsula Airport District  
Monterey, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Monterey Peninsula Airport 
District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated November 9, 2015.   
 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 



 

48 

Purpose of this Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

 
 
Walnut Creek, California  
November 9, 2015 

 



www.mgocpa.com

Certified   
Public 
Accountants 

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

Oakland

Los Angeles

Century City

Newport Beach

San Diego

 Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
2121 N. California Blvd., Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

 

49 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the  
Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over  

Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133  
 
Board of Directors  
Monterey Peninsula Airport District  
Monterey, California 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  
 
We have audited the Monterey Peninsula Airport District’s (District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on the District’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2015. The 
District’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility  

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the District’s major federal program based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on the Major Federal Program  
 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
June 30, 2015. 



 

50 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Walnut Creek, California 
November 9, 2015 



CFDA Grant
Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Administration

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 AIP 58, 59, 61 26,334,749$  

Total expenditures of federal awards 26,334,749$  

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

51



 

52 

This page intentionally left blank.



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

53 

NOTE 1 – GENERAL 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) includes the federal grant activity 
of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District (District).    
 
NOTE 2 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
The accompanying schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting as described in Note 1 to the 
District’s basic financial statements.   
 
NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Amounts reported in the SEFA agree to or can be reconciled with the amounts reported in the related federal 
financial reports.  
 
NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The SEFA agrees to or can be reconciled with the amounts reported in the District’s basic financial 
statements.  
 
 



 

54 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 

 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs – Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

55 

Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results  
 
Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued : Unmodified  

Internal control over financial reporting:  

 Material weakness(es) identified? No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified ? None reported 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements 
noted? No 

Federal Awards  

Internal control over major programs:  

 Material weakness(es) identified? No 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

 
Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB 
Circular A-133? 

 
No 

Identification of major programs:  

U.S. Department of Transportation, Airport Improvement Program (CFDA Number 20.106) 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and 
type B programs: $790,043 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes 

 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings  
 
None  
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings  
 
None  
 



 

56 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

57 

Prior Audit Findings  
 
There are no prior year findings and questioned costs.  
 
 
 



 

58 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 



www.mgocpa.com

Certified   
Public 
Accountants 

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

Oakland

Los Angeles

Century City

Newport Beach

San Diego

 Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
2121 N. California Blvd., Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596

 

59 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Applicable Requirements of the  
Passenger Facility Charge Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in  
Accordance With the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Monterey Peninsula Airport District  
Monterey, California 
 
Compliance 
 
We have audited Monterey Peninsula Airport District’s (District) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (the Guide), 
issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the 
year ended June 30, 2015. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Compliance with the requirements referred to above is the responsibility of the District’s management.   
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit.   
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide.  Those standards and the 
Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a material 
effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance.  Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with those requirements. 
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that 
are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2015.   
 
Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered the District’s internal control over compliance to determine the auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.   



 

60 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis.  A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance 
requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.   
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses.  We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Guide. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 

 
 
Walnut Creek, California 
November 9, 2015 
 



Passenger Under (over)
Facility Expenditures expenditures
Charge Interest Total on approved on approved

Revenue Earned Revenues projects projects
Balance to date as of June 30, 2014 14,299,714$  273,917$       14,573,631$  12,749,508$  1,824,123$    

Fiscal year 2014-2015 transactions:
Quarter ended September 30, 2014 189,876         2,329             192,205         142,087         
Quarter ended December 31, 2014 154,725         2,285             157,010         450,276         
Quarter ended March 31, 2015 194,901         2,025             196,926         434,443         
Quarter ended June 30, 2015 185,184         1,814             186,998         390,165         

Total fiscal year 2014-2015 transactions 724,686         8,453             733,139         1,416,971      (683,832)       

Balance to date as of June 30, 2015 15,024,400$  282,370$       15,306,770$  14,166,479$  1,140,291$    

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT
Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Revenues and Expenditures

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

See accompanying notes to the schedule of passenger facility charge revenues and expenditures. 

61



 

62 

This page left intentionally blank.



MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  
Notes to the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Revenues and Expenditures  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015  
 
 

63 

NOTE 1 – GENERAL 
 
The Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Revenues and Expenditures presents only the activity of the 
Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) program of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District (District).   
 
The Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-508, Title II, Subtitle B) 
authorized the imposition of PFCs and use of the resulting revenue on Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) approved projects.  PFCs are fees imposed on enplaned passengers by the District for the purpose 
of generating revenue for District projects that increase capacity, increase safety, mitigate noise impact and 
enhance competition between and among air carriers in accordance with FAA approvals. 
 
NOTE 2 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
The accompanying schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting as described in Note 1 to the 
District’s basic financial statements.   
 
NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
Amounts reported in the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charge Revenues and Expenditures agree to or can 
be reconciled with the amounts reported to the FAA on the Passenger Facility Charge Quarterly Status 
Reports. 
 
NOTE 4 – PFC APPROVED PROJECTS AND EXPENDITURES 
 
The general description of the approved projects and the expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2015 are 
as follows: 
 

Passenger
Identifying Facility Charge

Passenger Facility Charge Project Number/Description Number Approved Amount Expenditures
Airport Access Improvements - Phase II 10-15-C-00-MRY 300,000$               -$                
Runway Safety Area Design - Phase I 10-15-C-00-MRY 75,000                  -                  
Runway Safety Area Construction - Phase I 10-15-C-00-MRY 515,000                47,973             
Flight Information Display System and Access Information Equipment - Phase II 10-15-C-00-MRY 75,000                  -                  
Wildlife Hazard Assessment 10-15-C-00-MRY 10,000                  -                  
Runway 10R/28L Safety Area Construction, Phase 2 11-17-C-00-MRY 650,000                359,719           
Terminal Improvements - Weather Protection Canopies 11-17-C-00-MRY 125,000                -                  
Update Airport Master Plan Study 13-18-C-00-MRY 145,000                56,636             
Improve Runway 10R/28L Safety Area - Phase III 13-18-C-00-MRY 820,000                860,015           
Install Perimeter Fence Alarm 13-18-C-00-MRY 30,000                  -                  
Apron Rehabilitation-Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting Ramp 13-18-C-00-MRY 125,000                -                  
Acquire One Standard Police Vehicle - Security Improvement 14-19-C-00-MRY 50,000                  -                  
Improve Runway Safety Area Runway 10R/28L - Phase 4 14-19-C-00-MRY 1,936,000              92,628             

   Total Passenger Facility Charge Projects 4,856,000$            1,416,971$       

  
 
The expenditures of the Improve Runway 10R/28L Safety Area – Phase III project are in excess of the 
authorized amount. However, in accordance with FAA guidelines, if actual allowable project costs exceed 
the estimate contained in the PFCs application in which the authority was approved, the public agency may 
elect to increase the total approved PFCs revenue in that application by 15%.



 

64 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fleet Management Policy of the 
Monterey Peninsula Airport District 

Board of Directors 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Implementation Date: December 1, 2015 



Monterey Peninsula Airport District Fleet Management Policy 
 
 
GENERAL FLEET MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The Fleet Management Policy, approved by the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board of 
Directors, is to set forth a framework for meeting the operation and transportation needs of the 
District through the most economical and efficient means available without compromising quality 
of work or safety and to support the aims of the districts strategic plan in making MPAD a safer 
place to work and visit. 
 
This policy is also to give guidance to District Fleet operations and associated stakeholders to 
enable and monitor the organizational ability to procure and manage our assets in the best 
possible way, taking into consideration our duty of care and legal obligations.  
   
Congruent with this policy is accountability.  This policy establishes accountability, not only for 
District employees that are operating District vehicles during the performance of their duties, but 
also for District managers and the Board of Directors.  
 
 
 
SPECIFIC POLICIES 
 
The acquisition, retention, replacement and retirement of District Fleet equipment and vehicles 
shall consider safety, demonstrated operational need and cost effectiveness to the District.  Fleet 
equipment decisions and recommendations will be made by the Executive Director and submitted 
to the Board of Directors, with appropriate justifications, as part of the annual Capital Budgeting 
approval process. 
 
The Executive Director shall be responsible for the implementation and application of this policy 
and may designate a District Fleet Manager to coordinate the administration of Fleet Management 
procedures. 
 
Although District employees utilize District-supplied vehicles to accomplish the everyday tasks 
that support operations at the airport, other methods (in lieu of District-purchased vehicles) to 
move employees and materials shall be considered to meet operational needs at optimum cost 
to the District. 
 
These alternatives shall include personal vehicle mileage reimbursement, temporary equipment 
rentals, equipment leasing, and intergovernmental equipment sharing. 
 
Justifications of Fleet equipment acquisitions shall always consider the full life cycle cost of the 
proposed acquisition or replacement to include operations and maintenance costs. 
 
The acquisition of vehicles for sole use by designated District personnel is discouraged.  Such 
acquisitions and/or usage shall be specifically justified by the Executive Director to the Board of 
Directors in conjunction with the capital budgeting process. 
 



The Executive Director or designee shall develop and maintain a Fleet Inventory of all District 
equipment identifying the intended use and projected equipment life before retirement or 
replacement. 

The Executive Director or designees shall develop, implement and maintain appropriate 
procedures and approval processes to assure that all vehicle and equipment utilized by District 
personnel are being operated safely, legally, maintained appropriately, shared (pooling) as much 
as practicable and used as intended. 

Such operating procedures and approval processes shall supplement this Fleet Management 
Policy of the Board of Directors and may be changed from time to time by the Executive Director 
at his discretion. 

This Fleet Management Policy may be amended and or revised by the MPAD Board, as required, 
upon the recommendation of the Executive Director. 



AGENDA ITEM: G 
DATE: November 18, 2015 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Jennifer Hickerson, Marketing & Public Relations Coordinator 
Air Service Development Report 

Ken Griggs, Operations Manager 
Operations Report 

Jeff Hoyne, Police Chief 
Police Activity Report 

Monterey Fire Department 
Monthly Report 

Jerry Merritt, District Auditor/Controller 
Financial Summary 

Mark Bautista, Deputy General Manager, Planning & 
Development P & D Monthly Project Report 



1 of 2 

 AGENDA ITEM:  G 
 DATE:  November 18, 2015 

TO: Mike La Pier, Executive Director 
FROM: Jennifer Hickerson, Marketing & Public Relations Coordinator 
DATE:  November 1, 2015 
SUBJ: Air Service Development Report 

Marketing, Advertising & Promotions 

Advertising: 

• Billboard: On Hwy 101, 2 miles north of Prunedale.

• Television:  We ran commercials on KSBW advertising the Alaska Airlines $59 fare sale to
LAX. 

Air Carrier Update: 

• AS – One 76-seat Q400 turboprop daily to SAN.  The flight is now mid-afternoon.  The LAX
service beings on 11/5.

• G4 (Allegiant) – LAS service continues Thursdays and Sundays. The week of Thanksgiving
they will fly Wednesday instead of Thursday.

• AA – PHX service continues three times a day.  The midday flight continues as CRJ900
service. They will cut back for Thanksgiving Day and the day after. They are expected to
increase to four times a day in early December.

• UA SFO – SFO service continues twice a day.  The last-in and first out flights have been up-
gauged to a CRJ700 six days a week.  They will cut back for Thanksgiving Day and the day
after.

Air Service Development: 

• We hosted the route planning department from Alaska Airlines October 8-11.  The visit went
very well.  They left extremely impressed with our destinations and our community partners.

• I will be traveling with the Monterey County Convention and Visitors Bureau to Los Angeles
November 4 & 5 to be part of a Monterey Pop-Up Event.  The CVB will be bringing chefs
from Post Ranch Inn and Passion Fish to create a Monterey County inspired dinner which
will be paired with Monterey County wines.  I will then be returning on the Alaska Airlines
inaugural flight from LAX with the CVB and selected travel writers who will then spend the
weekend in Monterey County and will write about their trip.



2 of 2 

Public Relations: 

• Social Media/Facebook:  “Total Likes” continue to grow – 13,455 as of November 2, 2015.

• Santa Cruz Warriors: We are working with the Santa Cruz Warriors to come up with a
promotion to give away a trip during their season.

Customer Service:  

• Customer Comment Cards: see October responses attached.





1 of 2 

 AGENDA ITEM:  G 
   DATE: November 18, 2015 

TO:  Michael La Pier, Executive Director 
FROM: Operations Manager Griggs 
DATE:  November 5, 2015 
SUBJ:  Operations Report  
________________________________________________________________________________ 

The following is a summary of significant activity in the Operations Department for October 2015. 

1. Uber transportation operations began on October 6th with limited activity, however, as the
month progressed, more vehicles were observed picking up and dropping off passengers.
The first activity report will be received from Uber by the end of this month.

2. Continuing coordination efforts with Planning & Development staff for general oversight of
the Runway Safety Area project.

3. Noise presentations regarding the FAA NextGen program and the impacts of the new flight
procedures affecting residential areas were made to selected staff for the City and County of
Monterey.

4. Attended the quarterly Regional Taxi Authority meeting.

5. Attached is the Noise Comment Log for October.

6. Attached is the Operating and Expense Report for the Taxi Open-Entry System.

7. Attached is the Commercial Flight Cancellations & Delays Report. In the month of October there 
were a total of 79 delays and 16 cancellations.

8. Attached is the Commercial Flight Schedule for November 2015.

9. Below is the summary of scheduled airline activity for November 2015:

Alaska Air flown by Horizon
- LAX service begins on 11/5
- Continuing to operate one daily departure to San Diego
- Scheduled to operate a total of 113 flights (Arrivals and Departures)

Allegiant Air
- No changes from October
- Continues service twice a week on Thursdays and Sundays. Will operate on Wednesday

11/25 instead of Thanksgiving Day. 
- Scheduled to operate a total of 18 flights (Arrivals and Departures)

United flown by SkyWest
- No significant changes from September
- Continuing to operate two daily SFO departures
- Continuing to operate four daily LAX departures, three on Saturdays
- Scheduled to operate a total of 356 flights (Arrivals and Departures)



2 of 2 

American Eagle flown by SkyWest/Mesa 
- Continuing to operate three daily departures to PHX. Service reduction on Thanksgiving and 

the day after. 
- The CRJ900, flown by Mesa, will continue to operate the midday flight 
- Scheduled to operate a total of 180 flights (Arrivals and Departures) 

Cumulatively speaking, the airlines have scheduled 107 fewer flights (667 vs. 774) as compared 
to last November. This is primarily due to the American Eagle discontinuation of LAX service, and 
the contraction of United Express SFO flights to maximize capacity using Canadair Regional Jets 
(50 and in some cases 76 seats) in lieu of Embraer 120 (27 seats) turbo-props. The new Alaska 
LAX service has reduced the cumulative loss of flights overall. 



Location

(Address)

Incident

Date

Incident 

Time 

Aircraft

 ID

</> of 

Flight Comments By Action Taken Notes

1 Lauren Virshup Pasadera
10/2, 10/3, 

10/10
multiple multiple

landing 

RWY 28L

Ongoing concerns regarding changes 

to RWY 28L RNAV approaches.
NG

Complainant requested 

complaints be logged as a 

matter of record so that 

the Board knows there is a 

problem.

Ops has corresponded at 

length with complainant 

regarding this issue.

2 Barbara Lovero Pasadera

10/5, 10/7, 

10/8, 10/9, 

10/10, 10/12, 

10/15, 10/16, 

10/18, 10/20, 

10/28, 10/29, 

10/30

multiple multiple
landing 

RWY 28L

Ongoing concerns regarding changes 

to RWY 28L RNAV approaches.
NG

Complainant requested 

complaints be logged as a 

matter of record so that 

the Board knows there is a 

problem.

Ops has corresponded at 

length with complainant 

regarding this issue.

3 John Miller Ryan Ranch 10/8/2015 around 8am
Cessna 

Skyhawk

departing 

RWY 10R

Aircraft banked over McGraw-Hill 

building only 20 feet above building
NG

ATCT advised aircraft was 

at a safe height during 

departure turn.

4 Matthew Cervelli
Laguna Seca Estates / 

York Rd. Area
10/15/2015 multiple multiple

landing 

RWY 28L

adamant that all aircraft are flying 

lower than 500 feet over his property
KG

discussed that due to 

NextGen, flight paths have 

changed. Atitudes 

adjustments may have 

occurred as a result, 

however legally all aircraft 

must adhere to minimum 

Part 91 altitude rules. 

Mr. Cervelli was under the 

impression his observations are 

correct. Requested he submit 

data to support his findings. 

Explained the process of FAA 

rules & regulations.

5 Denise Corral de Tierra 10/15/2015 this morning multiple
landing 

RWY 28L

Noticed eight aircraft flying over her 

house this morning, rather unusually 

close

KG
Caller left no contact 

information

6 Jeremiah Wilson Pasadera ongoing multiple multiple
landing 

RWY 28L

Sharp increase in planes flying over 

home.  Very loud and disturbing.
NG

Discussed changes to 

appch procedures and 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

7 Kevin Kelly Skyline Forest
10/17, last few 

weeks

various/"in 

batches"
multiple

departing 

RWY 28L

Are turning to the south south east 

over the Hwy 68 ridge sooner than 

normal? Change is noticeable over 

CHOMP area.

NG

Variation in departure 

procedure due to 

combination of weather 

and ATC. Also possibly 

some VFR operations.

8 Angela Savage Pasadera 10/21/2015 11:30am CRJ900
landing 

RWY 28L

Low flying plane directly overhead. 

Flight path too close to heavily 

occupied residences at high elevation 

over 680 feet. 

NG

Provided information 

regarding changes to 

appch procedures and 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

9
Paulette 

Fabacher
Pasadera 10/18/2015 morning multiple

landing 

RWY 28L

Concerns about noise and safety due 

to approach changes.
NG

Provided information 

regarding changes to 

appch procedures and 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

Explained current status and 

steps taken by staff and Board 

to further address the issue.

10 Irene Maples Pasadera ongoing multiple multiple
landing 

RWY 28L

Consistent increase in aircraft noise 

resulting from approach changes.
NG

Provided information 

regarding changes to 

appch procedures and 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

Explained current status and 

steps taken by staff and Board 

to further address the issue.

MRY AIRPORT NOISE COMMENT LOG

OCTOBER 2015

  Name

AIR OPERATIONS CENTERED AT MONTEREY AIRPORT



11 Kenneth Nowak York Hills 10/25/2015 8:00pm Q400
landing 

RWY 28L

Alaska airlines flight is directly over 

house, too low and too loud. 
NG

Provided information on 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

Explained current status and 

steps taken by staff and Board 

to further address the issue.

12 Gordon Mayfield San Benancio
Last several 

months
multiple multiple

landing 

RWY 28L

Increasing jet numbers and noise 

over the San Benancio Canyon 

community, both on approach to 

MRY and higher altitude Bay Area 

traffic

NG

Provided information 

regarding changes to 

appch procedures and 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

Explained current status and 

steps taken by staff and Board 

to further address the issue. 

Referred complainant to FAA 

Noise Ombudsman.

13 Jeffrey Latts Pasadera 10/27/2015 3:00pm unknown jet
landing 

RWY 28L

Loud plane flew over home making it 

difficult to converse.
NG

Provided information 

regarding changes to 

appch procedures and 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

Multiple jet operations 

occurring around reported time 

including Gulfstream 200.

14 Justin Braiker Pasadera ongoing every day multiple
landing 

RWY 28L

Requesting change to current flight 

paths.  Current paths disturb sleep of 

young children and are also an 

annoyance during the day.

NG

Provided information on 

MPAD's continued efforts 

with FAA to evaluate 

alternatives.

Complainant had already 

received information from 

Pasadera neighborhood group.

15 Jeffrey Latts Pasadera 10/29/2015 3:04pm Citation
landing 

RWY 28L

Plane passed directly over house. 

Noise was disturbing.
NG See entry #13.

16 Pete DeMaria CONA 10/30/2015 2:50pm

Red and 

white 

Cherokee

RWY 28 

pattern

Angry that plane has overflown 

house 3 times, turning crosswind 

before freeway. Is going to contact 

the media.

NG

Contacted pilot at Navy 

Flying Club ramp. He 

understood concerns and 

will follow proper 

procedure in the future.

Complainant did not leave 

callback information.

17 Howard Fosler New Monterey 10/30/2015 all day multiple
RWY 10R 

depatures

Has been quiet all week until today - 

at least eight runway heading 

departures today.  Why the change?

NG

ATCT advised those 

operations were due to 

traffic in the area.

Mr. Fosler indicated this was 

an inquiry not a complaint but 

disputes reason for change. 

Requested further follow-up.

18

1

2

1
Richard 

Cheatham

Carmel Valley/Los 

Tulares
Since Labor Day multiple multiple unknown

Requested information on flight path 

changes at Bay Area airports due to 

rise in aircraft noise in Carmel Valley.

NG

Provided complainant with 

information on NextGen 

changes at MRY and 

general program 

information.

Also provided contact 

information for SJC, OAK and 

SFO noise offices.

2 Linda Cheatham
Carmel Valley/Los 

Tulares
Since Labor Day multiple multiple unknown

Further inquiry regarding increase in 

aircraft noise in Carmel Valley.
NG

Provided complainant with 

information on NextGen 

changes at MRY and 

general program 

information.

Also provided contact 

information for SJC, OAK and 

SFO noise offices.

October-15 October-14 % Change Other Airport UNKNOWN ORIGINS

19 10 90% 0 0

6,374 5,072 26%

% Change

103 60 72% 0 0

AIR OPERATIONS ORIGINATING FROM ANOTHER AIRPORT

Annual Total

AIR OPERATIONS OF UNKNOWN ORIGIN

MONTHLY TOTALS and COMPARISONS

Number of Complaints:

Number of Operations:



13-MONTH ROLLING COMPARISON

2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

NUMBER OF TRIPS 4,428 3,562 2,002 3,416 3,657 4,074 3,795 3,648 2,420 3,604 3,867 3,722 3,803

NUMBER OF CABS 117 119 122 123 124 127 128 128 129 101 105 111 115

TAXI TRIP FEES 13,284$    10,686$    6,006$    10,248$    10,971$    12,222$    11,385$    10,944$    7,260$    10,812$    11,601$    11,166$    11,409$    

TAXI MEDALLION FEES
1

3,646$    2,583$    2,833$    2,333$    2,458$    2,743$    2,271$    2,208$    2,271$    2,104$    3,104$    3,604$    2,917$    

TAXI - TOTAL REVENUE 16,930$    13,269$    8,839$    12,581$    13,429$    14,965$    13,656$    13,152$    9,531$    12,916$    14,705$    14,770$    14,326$    

CURB MGMT CONTRACT 10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    10,897$    

EQUIPMENT DEPRECIATION 1,600$    1,600$    1,600$    1,600$    1,600$    1,600$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    -$    

SOFTWARE LICENSE / HOSTING 2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    2,175$    

EXPENDABLE SUPPLIES

TAXI - TOTAL EXPENSE 14,672$    14,672$    14,672$    14,672$    14,672$    14,672$    13,072$    13,072$    13,072$    13,072$    13,072$    13,072$    13,072$    

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 2,258$    (1,403)$    (5,833)$    (2,091)$    (1,243)$    293$    584$    80$    (3,541)$    (156)$    1,633$    1,698$    1,254$    

CUMULATIVE (13-MONTH) OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (6,465)$    

4,428

3,562

2,002

3,416

3,657

4,074

3,795

3,648

2,420

3,604

3,867

3,722
3,803

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

OCTOBER
2014

NOVEMBER
2014

DECEMBER
2014

JANUARY
2015

FEBRUARY
2015

MARCH
2015

APRIL
2015

MAY
2015

JUNE
2015

JULY
2015

AUGUST
2015

SEPTEMBER
2015

OCTOBER
2015

NUMBER OF TRIPS

Taxi Statistics 13 Month Taxi



TOTAL DELAYED FLIGHTS: 79

OCTOBER 2015

TOTAL CANCELLED FLIGHTS:     16       

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

LAS LAX (UA) PHX SAN SFO TOTALS

Cancelled 0 3 1 0 12 16

Operated 18 235 181 61 112 607

% Cancelled 0.00% 1.26% 0.55% 0.00% 9.68% 2.57%

18 235 181 61
112

607

0 3 1 0
12

16

October Commercial Flights
Operated vs. Cancelled

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

LAS LAX (UA) PHX SAN SFO TOTALS

Delayed 6 47 7 2 17 79

On Time 12 188 174 59 95 528

% Delayed 33.33% 19.75% 3.85% 3.28% 13.71% 12.68%

12
188

174 59
95 528

6
47

7 2
17 79

October Commercial Flights
On Time vs. Delayed



FROM AIRLINE FLIGHT TIME SCHD TO AIRLINE FLIGHT TIME SCHD

CRJ200 (50) LAX 5324

10:17 AM

11:02 AM

MO-FR

SA-SU

EXC NOV 27

SFO 6346
5:45 AM

6:55 AM

SU-FR

SA
CRJ700 (70)

MD80 (166) LAS 540

10:02 AM

4:40 PM

9:43 AM

7:39 AM

3:30 PM

NOV 1

NOV 5,12,19

NOV 8,15,22

NOV 25

NOV 29

LAX      2603 6:00 AM
DAILY EFF 

NOV 6
Q400 (76)

CRJ900 (76)    PHX 5740 11:45 AM DAILY PHX 2980 6:15 AM DAILY CRJ200 (50)

Q400 (76) SAN 2436 2:00 PM DAILY LAX      5316 6:25 AM
DAILY EXC 

NOV 27
CRJ200 (50)

CRJ200 (50) LAX 5333
2:58 PM

3:40 PM

MO-FR

SU
LAX      5371/5362

10:47 AM

11:34 AM

MO-FR

SA-SU

EXC NOV 27

CRJ200 (50)

CRJ200 (50) SFO 5538
3:14 PM

3:57 PM

SA-TH

FR
LAS 541

10:47 AM

5:25 PM

10:28 AM

8:24 AM

4:16 PM

NOV 1

NOV 5,12,19

NOV 8,15,22

NOV 25

NOV 29

MD80 (166)

CRJ200 (50) PHX 2955
3:33 PM

11:56 AM

DAILY EXC

NOV 26
PHX 5740 12:30 PM DAILY CRJ900 (76)

CRJ200 (50) LAX 5331/5338

6:38 PM

6:04 PM

5:17 PM

7:50 PM

SU-FR

SA

NOV 27

NOV 28

EXC NOV 26

SAN 2437 2:35 PM DAILY Q400 (76)

Q400 (76) LAX 2604 9:05 PM
DAILY EFF

NOV 5
LAX 5343

3:28 PM

4:09 PM

MO-FR

SU
CRJ200 (50)

CRJ200 (50) PHX 2974 9:57 PM
DAILY EXC 

NOV 27
SFO 6359

3:47 PM

4:27 PM

SA-TH

FR
CRJ200 (50)

CRJ200 (50) LAX 5356 11:00 PM
DAILY

EXC NOV 26
PHX 2955 4:10 PM

DAILY EXC 

NOV 26-27
CRJ200 (50)

CRJ700 (70) SFO 6376
11:17 PM

11:03 PM

DAILY EXC 

NOV 26
LAX 5391

7:08 PM

6:34 PM

6:45 PM

8:20 PM

SU-FR

SA

NOV 27

NOV 28

EXC NOV 26

CRJ200 (50)

Monterey Regional Airport                                                 

November 2015 Flight Schedule                     

DEPARTURESARRIVALS

*Flight Schedule is general information and subject to change. Schedules are updated monthly and can change daily. Please 

contact your airline for further information.

Indicates new service



AGENDA ITEM:  G 
DATE:  November 18, 2015 

TO:  Michael La Pier, Executive Director 
FROM: Police Chief Jeff Hoyne 
DATE:  November 2, 2015 
SUBJECT: Police Activity Report for October 2015 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

The following is a summary of significant activity in the Police Department during October 2015: 

Highlights 

- MRY PD responded to 205 alarms in October. 

- Officers worked a total of 15 hours of overtime in October. 

- MRY PD Officers responded to two outside agency assists in October, which 
consisted of the following: 

• 10/12 @ 0330 – Dispatched to 1048 Paloma Drive in regards to a possible
trespass. The vacant residence was deemed clear.

• 10/26 @ 1645 – A stolen motorcycle was recovered per request of Salinas
PD. No subjects. Vehicle was towed by California Towing.

Training 

MRY PD Officers completed: 

- POST Learning Portal: First Aid / CPR Training 
- Sergeant Porter attended a Training Managers course 
- Officer Hickerson attended a Search Warrant for Patrol course 

Calls for Service 

1. 10/1 @ 2400 – A departing flight reported a possible bird strike. Officer Allen conducted
a search of the runway on 28L/10R near Taxiway L and nothing was found.

2. 10/4 @ 1350 – Dispatched to Highway 68 Storage for two attempted burglaries on two units.

3. 10/6 @ 0200 – Stood by with Monterey Police officers as they questioned a known criminal
about reporting a false emergency. Subject later transported home.

4. 10/6 @ 0645 – Subject was contacted and FI inside the terminal due to suspicious behavior.
Subject had an outstanding warrant issued by Orange County and was taken to Monterey
County jail.

5. 10/6 @ 0804 – Dispatched to 506 Airport Way (Peninsula Woodworking) regarding a gas
leak. Monterey Fire determined it was from the gas meter which was within normal
operation.



6. 10/12 @ 1545 – Anonymous report that a Green Cab driver was under the influence.
Contacted the driver and determined the call to have no merit.

7. 10/15 @ 0330 – Dispatched to contact a passenger who was afraid to be inside the terminal
alone.

8. 10/15 @ 1942 – All perimeter access alarm call at Skypark Self Storage. The area checked
but appeared secure.

9. 10/24 @ 1818 – Two trespassers were reported jumping the AOA fence at Tarpys. Officers
were unable to locate the subjects. A section of the 3-strand top wire is missing.
Maintenance notified.

10. 10/25 @ 1414 – Dispatched to Highway 68 Self Storage for a past tense burglary.

11. 10/28 @ 0520 – Officers dispatched to the TSA checkpoint for a gun found in a carry on
bag.



MONTEREY FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Report to Airport Board of Directors 

October 2015 

1. Incident Responses

Engine assigned to Fire Station 6 (Airport) responded to a total of 26 incidents during the month

as follows (see attached for breakdown of types of incidents):

 MPAD property – 4

 City of Monterey – 21

 Naval Postgraduate School – 1

2. Training

Personnel completed a total of 61.5 hours of Airport related training during the month.

Currently the following numbers of personnel are qualified in the ARFF training program:

 Awareness (familiar with operations at the Airport): 71

 Operational (qualified to work at Airport, but no live fire training): 31

 Technician (fully qualified to be the designated ARFF fire engineer): 13

3. Other

 The primary ARFF apparatus (Crash 6456) had transmission trouble. City of Monterey

mechanics were able to repair it with minimal down time. The reserve ARFF unit (Crash

64 57) was placed into service during that time.



Alarm Date Between {10/01/2015} And 
{10/31/2015}  and Station = "6" 

Monterey Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury12 46.15% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 1 3.85% $0   0.00%

13 50.00% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
413 Oil or other combustible liquid spill 1 3.85% $0   0.00%

1 3.85% $0 0.00%

5 Service Call
550 Public service assistance, Other 1 3.85% $0   0.00%
551 Assist police or other governmental agency 2 7.69% $0   0.00%
553 Public service 1 3.85% $0   0.00%

4 15.38% $0 0.00%

6 Good Intent Call
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 1 3.85% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 1 3.85% $0   0.00%
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1 3.85% $0   0.00%
671 HazMat release investigation w/no HazMat 1 3.85% $0   0.00%

4 15.38% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
730 System malfunction, Other 2 7.69% $0   0.00%
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 1 3.85% $0   0.00%
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional1 3.85% $0   0.00%

4 15.38% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 26 Total Est Loss: $0

11/03/2015 12:09 1Page



1 

AGENDA ITEM: G        
DATE:  November 18, 2015 

TO: Michael La Pier, Executive Director, Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
FROM: Jerry Merritt, District Auditor/Controller 
SUBJ: Financial Summary for September & Fiscal Year 2016 

BACKGROUND.  The Financial Summary for September 2015 (the third period of Fiscal Year 
2016) is summarized by the following documents: 

• Graphic Comparison – Actual Operating Revenue & Actual Operating Expense
• Airport District Operating Statistics & Financial Performance
• Sources / Uses of Cash
• Capital Expenditures

SUMMARY.  In September, operating revenue was below plan by $12,595 (-2%).  Terminal 
rents, terminal concessions, taxi operator permits & trip fees, rental car concessions, GA 
landing fees and other operating revenues were above plan. 

In September, GA operations were 11.4% lower than in August 2015, and 102.7% higher than 
September 2014; GA landing fees remain above plan. 

Commercial aeronautical fees, TCP operator permits, parking concession, fuel flowage fees and 
light general aviation space/hangar rents were below plan. 

There were seventeen (17) cancelled commercial flights in September, causing commercial 
aeronautical fee and parking concession revenue to be below plan.   American also terminated 
its LA service.  Despite fewer commercial flights, rental car concessions and restaurant 
concession revenue exceeded expectations. 

The District received $2,308 (one-time/other operating revenue) from the State of California. 
These payments were interest on SB 90 claims filed and paid for fiscal years 1999-2008. 

Fiscal year-to-date operating revenue was $28,959 (or 1%) above plan at September 30, 2015 
and is due to above plan GA landing fees and one-time SB 90 reimbursements. 

SEPTEMBER SEPTEMBER FYTD FYTD
2015 2015 2016 2016

ACTUAL PLAN $ % ACTUAL PLAN $ %

696,096$       708,691$       (12,595)$        -2% 2,208,478$    2,179,519$    28,959$       1%

OPERATING  REVENUE

VARIANCE VARIANCE



2 

In September, operating expense was below plan by $100,142 (-13%); phasing is the primary 
cause (planned expenses have been purposely postponed).  FYTD operating expense was 
below plan by 10% or $226,980; this positive variance will erode as the fiscal year progresses. 

SEPTEMBER SEPTEMBER FYTD FYTD
2015 2015 2016 2016

ACTUAL PLAN $ % ACTUAL PLAN $ %

647,782$       747,855$       100,073$       -13% 1,935,578$    2,162,558$    226,980$     -10%

OPERATING  EXPENSE

VARIANCEVARIANCE

Net income for September was 223% or $87,478 above plan; FYTD net income was $255,939 
(1509%) above plan; both due to operating expense being below plan, above plan operating 
revenue also contributed. 

SEPTEMBER SEPTEMBER FYTD FYTD
2015 2015 2016 2016

ACTUAL PLAN $ % ACTUAL PLAN $ %

48,314$         (39,164)$        87,478$         223% 272,900$       16,961$         255,939$     1509%

OPERATING  INCOME / (LOSS)

VARIANCE VARIANCE

The net change in operating cash position for September was a positive $1,029,606; FYTD net 
change was a positive $1,176,362; this is attributable to operating expense being below plan 
and operating revenue being above plan.  Nearly $1 million of was due to reimbursement of 
litigation (attorney) fees. 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE.  The accounts receivable balance on September 30, 2015, was 
$423,410.  This balance is 0.2% higher than the balance on August 31, 2015 and 17.6% lower 
than the balance on June 30, 2015. 

Of the accounts receivable balance, $5,374 or 1.3% was over 60 days old.  Chart 1 depicts the 
accounts receivable balances by month. 

Chart 1 

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

550,000

600,000

June 30, 2015 July 31, 2015 August 31, 2015 September 30, 2015



3 
 

Under normal circumstances, the balance of accounts receivable at month-end will align with 
the dynamic (variable) operating revenue in that month, such as landing fees, fuel flowage fees, 
concession-based revenues, passenger facility charges (PFC).  Typically, accounts receivable 
balances will span a range from $350,000 to $550,000, depending on the District’s business 
cycle.  We have a cyclic high in August; a cyclic low in January.  Compared to August, 
September operating revenue decreased 12.8%; compared to July, September operating 
revenue decreased 2.5%.  Chart 2 graphically presents the monthly comparison of operating 
revenues to accounts receivable. 
 

Chart 2 
 

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

July August September

FY 2016

OP REVENUE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  
 
 
INVESTMENTS.  The investments balance on August 31, 2015 was $2,246,888; the 
investments balance on September 30, 2015 was $3,248,332. 
 
Chart 3 graphically presents the monthly balances of investments. 
 

Chart 3 
 

2,243,554 2,245,194

2,246,888

3,248,332

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

June 30, 2015 July 31,  2015 August 31, 2015 September 30, 2015  
 
 
 
 



4 
 

Chart 4 presents a rolling 13-month display of total enplanements which mimics the business 
cycle of the District.  When compared to August 2015, September 2015 enplanements 
decreased 9.6%.  When compared to September 2014, September 2015 enplanements 
decreased 3.9%. 
 

Chart 4 
 

15,280

17,102

15,168

13,882

12,728

13,010

15,823 15,926

16,336

15,110

16,239 16,248

14,682

12,000

13,000

14,000

15,000

16,000

17,000

18,000

SEPTEMBER
2014

OCTOBER
2014

NOVEMBER
2014

DECEMBER
2014

JANUARY
2015

FEBRUARY
2015

MARCH
2015

APRIL
2015

MAY
2015

JUNE
2015

JULY
2015

AUGUST
2015

SEPTEMBER
2015

EN
PL

AN
EM

EN
TS

MONTH

ROLLING 13-MONTH ENPLANEMENT COMPARISON   (ALL AIRLINES)

 
 













1 
 

                  AGENDA ITEM:  G 
        DATE:  November 18, 2015 
 
TO:  Michael La Pier, Executive Director 
FROM: Mark Bautista, Deputy General Manager, Planning & Development  
DATE: October 30, 2015 
SUBJ: Planning & Development Monthly Project Report 
 
 
Attached is the current monthly Project Report for the Planning and Development 
Department.  Highlights for October 2015 include: 
 
• Work directed toward implementation of the Runway Safety Area (RSA) Project 

accomplished during the reporting period, including: 
 

o Storage of EMAS blocks for Rwy 10R/28L west end. 
o Installation of EMAS deflector shield. 
o Maintenance of the project web site on the Internet. 
 

• Work directed toward the Airport Master Plan (AMP), including: 
 

o Commencement of the CEQA Initial Study (IS). 
o Preparation of the airport economic benefits study brochure. 

 
• Work directed toward the Wells Assessment Project, including: 

 
o Approval of use of well water assessment grant funds by Monterey 

Peninsula Water Management District (MPWMD), for conducting the 
Options Analysis. 

o Issuance of NTP to Allterra Environmental to conduct Options Analysis. 
 

• Work directed toward the Infields Rehabilitation Project, including: 
 
o Identification of probable haul routes, staging areas, and other research 

conducted in order to help assess environmental impacts. 
o Preparation of scoping letters to agencies/individuals for project’s 

environmental assessment. 
o Preparation of legal notice for publication in the Monterey Herald regarding 

scoping. 
 

• Work directed toward assessment of Bldgs 505 & 506, including: 
 
o Accomplishment of a structural inspection; buildings do not present a safety 

hazard. 
o Accomplishment of a lead-based paint & asbestos evaluation/report: 

buildings do not present a safety hazard as long as tenants and Airport do 
not modify the buildings (e.g., drilling into walls); exteriors should be treated 
to remediate asbestos/lead-based paint; Airport should develop O&M 
manual; Airport employees/tenants should receive notification/awareness 



2 
 

training, report available; firm should be hired to be on-call to remediate any 
problems that arise (e.g., asbestos shingles falling to the ground); Prop 65 
signage should be placed accordingly. 

o Will allow for another 3 to 5 years of use of the buildings. 
o Walk-through meeting on site with potential local contractors, for the 

purpose of getting quotes to accomplish remediation. 
o Quotes received for development of an O&M Manual, and tenant/staff 

training. 
 

• Analysis of Cooling the Airport Terminal Hold Rooms, including: 
 

o Assessment of ability to add modifications to existing HV systems. 
o Assessment of existing Airport Terminal electrical systems and ability to 

power modifications (expensive modification would be necessary to 
accomplish the air conditioning of both hold rooms) 

o Cost of designing modifications to the existing HV systems for both hold 
rooms (in order to secure bids and achieve construction, the modifications 
would have to be accomplished as a complete bid package, including plans 
and specifications). 

o Architect’s estimate of construction cost. 
o Total estimated cost, not including inspection fees:  $423,155. 
o Staff will not move forward on installation of air conditioning in the Airport 

Terminal Hold Rooms. However, other alternatives such as additional fans 
will be considered, depending on actual temperatures. 

 
• Work directed toward preparation for an El Nino predicted wet season, including: 

 
o Removal of standing dead trees capable of being blown over and impacting 

fences, structures, etc. 
o Inspection of all storm drain inlets for removal of debris and other restrictions 

to flow. 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
Monthly Capital Project Report  

November 2015 
 
 

 

                 Planning                                 Development 

Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
 



Copy of Monthly Cap Projects report 11-18-2015 Page 1

PROJECT

#
AIP # PFC

Prior FY 

Budget

FY 2016 

Budget

Post FY 

Budget

Total Project 

Budget

Spent in Prior 

Fiscal Years

FY 2016 

Expenditures to 

Date

Cumulative 

10/31/2015

% Physical 

Complete
Project Name

Current                                 

Status
4 Week Look Ahead

1
2012-01 and 

2014-01
58, 61

10-15-C-00-

MRY                 

11-17-C-00-

MRY             

13-18-C-00-

MRY             

14-19-C-00-

MRY

$31,973,875 $19,104,934 $0 $51,078,808 $31,973,875 $10,268,958 $42,242,832 94%

RSA Runway 

10R/28L - 

Construction; Phase 1 

and 2

Schedule I, II , III, IV are 

complete. Schedule V began 

8/18/15 with installation of 

temporary Rwy 10R 

threshold. The Glide Slope 

and MALSR out of service 

until publication of new 

procedures on 12/10/15. 

Current construction 

improvements include: 

completion of the  remaining 

Twy A connection and Twy 

E modifications , and 

completing the new VSR.  

All components are within 

the RSA. 

 EMAS installation is 

underway, anticipated 

completion on approx 11/11, 

weather depending. Navaid 

flight checks scheduled for 

12/1, 12/2, and 12/3, depending 

on weather and install.

2 2013-02 59
13-18-C-00-

MRY
$842,341 $252,639 $0 $1,094,980 $842,341 $137,496 $979,837 95% Airport Master Plan

  Final PAC and public 

workshop meetings were 

held on September 29, 2015. 

Update on work progress 

was presented at the July 8, 

2015 BOD meeting.

  Work continues on preparation 

of an Initial Study.

3 2015-03 62 Unk. $0 $825,000 $269,980 $1,094,980 $0 $23,207 $23,207 5%

Airport Infield Safety 

Area Rehabilitiation-

Part A

Grant agreement has been 

executed with the FAA.

NTP has been issued to 

Coffman, kick-off meeting has 

been held; data gathering has 

begun and will continue through 

reporting period.

5 N/A N/A N/A $96,175 $2,825 $0 $99,000 $96,175 $0 $96,175 n/a
FWSS Mitigation 

Land Restoration

Preparation and planting is 

complete at the off-airport 

site.

Monitoring will continue 

through FY 2017.

ACTIVE FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS:

ACTIVE DISTRICT FUNDED PROJECTS:

STATUSEXPENDITURESBUDGETINGFUNDING

11/12/2015



1 of 1 

  AGENDA ITEM: H-2 
           DATE:  November 18, 2015 
            
 
TO: Board of Directors 
FROM: Michael La Pier, Executive Director 
 Ken Griggs, Airport Operations Manager 
 Scott E. Huber, District Counsel 
SUBJ:  Approve Ordinance 916 Regulating the Operation of Commercial Passenger Vehicles 

Other Than Taxicabs at the Monterey Regional Airport 
 
BACKGROUND.  Ordinance 911 was adopted on June 30, 2011 as an urgency ordinance to 
impose regulations on each commercial vehicle, other than taxicabs, picking up passengers at 
the airport.  MPAD’s existing ground transportation regulations neither anticipated nor were 
structured to accommodate the Transportation Network Company (“TNC”) operational model.  
With the advent of TNCs, and the recent approval of the agreement with Uber to provide service 
to the Monterey Regional Airport, Staff reviewed the current ordinances and determined that a 
change is necessary to apply a uniform set of rules to all commercial vehicle operators.   
 
Ordinance 916 is not a significant departure from the current regulations regarding the operation 
of commercial vehicles.  The modifications are quite minor and related to the regulation and 
operation of TNCs, which have arisen in recent years. 
 
Specifically, Ordinance 916 adds the definition of a TNC, and makes certain modifications to apply 
the regulations in a uniform manner to all commercial vehicle operators, such as applying parking 
restrictions in front of the terminal to all commercial vehicles, and restricting pick ups and drop 
offs by commercial vehicle operators to only allow them by those who have registered with the 
District.  If approved, Ordinance 916 will repeal and replace Ordinance 911, which is the current 
version of commercial vehicle regulations.   
 
BUDGET EFFECT.  None. 
 
IMPACT ON REVENUES.  Unknown at present. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS. None. 
  
RECOMMENDATION.  Adopt Ordinance 916 that repeals and replaces Ordinance 911. 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 916 

ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE 911 
REGULATING THE OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL  

PASSENGER VEHICLES OTHER THAN TAXICABS AT THE 
MONTEREY REGIONAL AIRPORT 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT 
DISTRICT DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Definitions.  Unless specifically defined otherwise herein, or 
unless a different meaning is apparent from the context, the following words or phrases 
have the meanings set forth below.  Words or phrases that are not defined in this 
ordinance, but that are defined in the California Penal Code, have the meanings set 
forth therein. 

“Airport” means the Monterey Peninsula Airport and all lands owned or operated 
by the Monterey Peninsula Airport District for Airport purposes or activities.  “Airport” 
includes all improvements, facilities and appurtenances. 

“Commercial Passenger Vehicle” means any motor vehicle carrying or conveying 
passengers for hire or commercial purposes, including but not limited to passenger 
stages, passenger charter party carriers, limousines, shuttles, hotel, motel and similar 
courtesy vehicles, Transportation Network Company (“TNC”) vehicles, but does not 
mean taxicabs operating in conformity with the requirements of any unexpired and 
unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization issued 
by the District for such activity. 

“District” means the Monterey Peninsula Airport District. 

“Fiscal Year” means a year commencing on July 1 and ending on the following 
June 30. 

“Executive Director” means the Executive Director of the Airport and District. 

“Person” shall include the singular and the plural and shall also mean and include 
any individual, firm, company, corporation, association, joint stock association, club, 
partnership, joint venture, society or any other form of association or organization, 
public or private or body politic and includes any trustee, receiver, committee, assignee 
or other representative or employee thereof. 

“Solicitation” means initiating or engaging in a conversation regarding ground 
transportation services with any person on the Airport for the purpose of seeking 
passengers or customers for a commercial passenger vehicle operator;  employing, 
inducing, arranging for or allowing any person to initiate or engage in a conversation 
regarding ground transportation services with any other person on the Airport for the 



 

2 

purpose of seeking passengers or customers for a commercial passenger vehicle 
operator; engaging in any conduct or activity intended to or apparently intended to ask, 
implore or persuade a passenger or potential passenger to alter his or her previously 
chosen mode of ground transportation or commercial passenger vehicle operator, 
delivering literature on the Airport discussing or describing ground transportation 
services to be provided by a commercial passenger vehicle operator to any person on 
the Airport;  or offering ground transportation services provided by a commercial 
passenger vehicle operator to any person while on the Airport.  “Solicitation” does not 
include actions by employees of any airline in arranging for transportation for any 
passenger of such airline. 
 
 “Terminal Building” means all buildings and structures located within the Airport 
and open to the public for the purpose of flight ticket purchase, public lobby, waiting, 
baggage check-in and those other services related to public air travel. 
 

SECTION 2.  Repeal and Cancellation of Prior Ordinances.  Ordinance No. 
911 entitled “An Urgency Ordinance To Repeal and Replace Ordinance 910 [Ordinance 
Regulating the Operation of Commercial Passenger Vehicles Other than Taxicabs at 
the Monterey Peninsula Airport]” is hereby repealed. Section 7.2 of Ordinance No. 796 
“An Ordinance Defining and Prohibiting Miscellaneous Criminal Conduct at the 
Monterey Peninsula Airport” (which section generally prohibited solicitation by 
commercial passenger vehicle operators, but excepted picking up pre-reserved 
customers) is hereby repealed. All other ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict 
with this ordinance, to the extent of such conflict and no further, are each hereby 
repealed. 

 
SECTION 3.  Operation of Commercial Passenger Vehicles.  Operation of 

commercial passenger vehicles at the Airport is regulated as follows: 
 
  3.1. Written Permission Required.  It is unlawful for any person to use 
any commercial passenger vehicle to pick up and/or drop off any passenger for hire or 
for any other commercial purpose at the Airport except with the advance written 
permission and approval of the District, and in conformity with the requirements of any 
unexpired and unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other written 
authorization issued by the District for such activity.   
 
  3.2. Solicitation Prohibited.  It is unlawful for any commercial passenger 
vehicle operator to engage in solicitation at the Airport, except as otherwise provided by 
a valid and unexpired or unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other 
written authorization issued by the District. 
 
  3.3. Parking in Front of Terminal Building Prohibited.  Except for loading 
and unloading passengers, it is unlawful for any commercial passenger vehicle operator 
to park any commercial passenger vehicle on any roadway adjacent to the terminal 
building, except as otherwise provided by a valid and unexpired or unterminated 
agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization issued by the District. 



 

3 

 
 SECTION 4.  Fees.  The Board will annually establish fees and charges for the 
operation of commercial passenger vehicles and the effective date of such fees and 
charges by Resolution, or by agreement with individual commercial passenger vehicle 
operators.  However, the frequency of adoption of a resolution establishing fees and 
charges is within the sole discretion of the Board. 
 
 Any commercial passenger vehicle operator holding a valid and unexpired or 
unterminated agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization issued 
by the District may apply for temporary authorization to add one or more commercial 
passenger vehicles to serve anticipated increases in passenger volume during a golf 
tournament, music festival, convention or other special event.  The application shall 
(a) identify the special event along with its starting and ending dates, (b) identify the 
vehicle or vehicles to be temporarily authorized to operate at the Airport, (c) include 
evidence of ownership of or a copy of the rental or other agreement by which the 
operator is acquiring the use of such vehicle or vehicles, and (d) include proof of 
insurance meeting the requirements set forth in Section 5 below. 
 
 SECTION 5.  Insurance.  Except as may otherwise may be provided in the 
agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization for a commercial 
passenger vehicle to operate at the Airport, there shall be maintained in full force and 
effect, at no cost to the District, for each commercial passenger vehicle operating at the 
Airport comprehensive form automobile liability insurance and workers compensation 
insurance where applicable.  The minimum terms and limits for such policies shall be as 
determined by the Executive Director, or such other increased limits as may be required 
by the California Public Utilities Commission for those operators over which that 
commission has regulatory control.  Each such policy of insurance shall be issued by an 
insurance organization authorized by the California Insurance Commissioner to transact 
the business of insurance within the State of California or by an insurer expressly 
approved in writing by the Executive Director.  Each applicant for an agreement, 
contract, license, permit or other written authorization to operate a commercial 
passenger vehicle at the Airport shall furnish appropriate certificates of insurance 
meeting the satisfaction of the Executive Director upon application and each holder of 
an agreement, contract, license, permit or other written authorization to operate a 
commercial passenger vehicle at the Airport shall furnish a substitute certificate of 
insurance meeting the satisfaction of the Executive Director no later than 30 days prior 
to any policy expiration date.   
 
 SECTION 6.  Penalties.  Each person who violates any provision of this 
ordinance is guilty of an infraction and upon conviction thereof shall be punishable by: 
 
  (a) a fine not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($250) for a first 
violation within any one-year period; 
 
  (b) a fine not exceeding Five Hundred Dollars ($500) for a second 
violation within any one-year period;  or  



4 

(c)  a fine not exceeding One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) for each 
additional violation within any one-year period. 

SECTION 7.  Severability.  This ordinance shall supplement and be in addition 
to the other regulatory codes, statutes and ordinances heretofore or hereafter enacted 
by the District, the State of California or any other legal entity or agency having 
jurisdiction.  This ordinance shall not be interpreted or construed to permit any activity 
where or when it is otherwise restricted by other applicable laws.  Nothing in this 
ordinance is intended to make punishable any act or acts which are prohibited by any 
law of the state or federal government.  Nothing in this ordinance shall authorize the 
maintenance of any public or private nuisance.  If any provision, clause, sentence or 
paragraph of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 
shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this ordinance 
which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application and to this end, the 
provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 8.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days from and 
after the date of its adoption. 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY 
PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT:  This 18th day of November, 2015, by the following 
role call vote: 

AYES: DIRECTORS:   
NOES: DIRECTORS: 
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS: 
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:   

Signed this 18th day of November, 2015 

  __________________________________ 
  William Sabo, Chair   

ATTEST 

Tonja Posey 
District Secretary 



 1 

         AGENDA ITEM:  H-3  
         DATE:  November 18, 2015 
 
TO:  Michael La Pier, Executive Director 
FROM: Mark Bautista, Deputy General Manager, Planning & Development 
DATE:  November 5, 2015 
SUBJ: Resolution No. 1653 - A Resolution Approving Submission of FY 2016-2021 Airport 

Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP); Approve Submittal to FAA; Authorize the 
Executive Director to Execute All Supporting Documents  

 
BACKGROUND.  The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requires Airport Sponsors, such as 
the District, to annually prepare a list of public improvements deemed necessary or desirable to be 
undertaken during the coming five fiscal years.  This list of projects, or ACIP, typically includes 
eligible projects that may be funded up to 90.66% by grant monies awarded by the FAA.  In order 
to qualify for such grant funding, the District must submit an ACIP to the FAA, together with related 
applications. The proposed FY 2016-2021 ACIP is primarily based upon the Master Plan project 
list, a recent meeting with FAA representatives, and on-going needs analysis accomplished by 
Staff. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK.  The proposed ACIP includes conceptual projects needed during the next five 
years and for the current Federal Fiscal Year 2016.  The specific scope of work for each project is 
refined during the “application for funds” process, and ultimately determined during the project’s 
design phase. 
 
BUDGET EFFECT.  None.  Approval of the ACIP does not commit the District to the expenditure of 
funds. Rather, grant agreements and contracts with construction and/or professional design 
services contractors establish the commitments to expend District funds.  Projects contained in the 
proposed ACIP are typically funded by a combination of FAA funds and Passenger Facility 
Charges (PFCs).  These projects are routinely included in each budget annually adopted by the 
MPAD Board. 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDS.   FAA AIP funds and PFC monies. 
 
IMPACT ON REVENUES.  None. 
 
SCHEDULE.  Annually, the FAA requires submission of the ACIP.  The ACIP proposed by Staff is 
being presented to the Board for approval, in anticipation of meeting the FAA deadline. 
 
IMPACT ON OPERATIONS.  n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN.  Annually reviewing and submitting an ACIP to the FAA implements Strategic 
Element No. 2 in the 2011 Strategic Plan, and more specifically, it implements Strategic Goal 2.1, 
by maintaining and implementing key capital improvement programs and plans. 
 
RECOMMENDATION.  That the Board adopts draft Resolution No. 1653 - A Resolution Approving 
Submission of FY 2016-2021 Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) to the FAA; Authorize the 
Executive Director to Execute All Supporting Documents. 



  

RESOLUTION NO. 1653 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING SUBMISSION OF THE FY 2016-2021 AIRPORT CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ACIP); APPROVE SUBMITTAL TO THE FAA, AUTHORIZE THE 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE ALL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Airport District owns and operates the Monterey 
Peninsula Airport; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has held many strategic planning meetings, including review of 

current and future Monterey Regional Airport projects and the priorities for same; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Airport District has compiled a list of capital 

improvement projects in the Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) that will best serve current 
and future airport users while maintaining airport pavement and other improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the California Department of 

Transportation may provide grant funds for qualified ACIP projects; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT THAT:  the Executive Director of the District, 
or his designee, is authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Monterey Peninsula Airport 
District, to submit the attached FY 2016-2021 ACIP to the FAA and application(s) in support 
thereof, and to execute and submit all future documents necessary to implement such ACIP and 
application(s), including grant agreements and any amendments thereto, and that the District 
Secretary or Acting District Secretary is authorized to affix thereto the official seal of said 
District.  Such grant agreements and amendments executed by the Executive Director are 
hereby approved, as though set forth in full. 

 
ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTEREY PENINSULA 

AIRPORT DISTRICT: This 18th day of November, 2015 by the following roll call vote: 
 

 AYES: DIRECTORS:    
 NOES: DIRECTORS:    
 ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:    
 ABSENT: DIRECTORS:    

  
    Signed this 18th day of November, 2015 
   

 
 

William Sabo, Chairman 
 
A T T E S T 
 
 

 
Tonja Posey 
District Secretary 
 





1 

AGENDA ITEM:  I. a. ii. 
DATE:  November 18, 2015 

TO: Board of Directors, Monterey Peninsula Airport District 
FROM: Michael La Pier, Executive Director (on behalf of the Finance Committee) 
SUBJ: Committee Report for Budget & Finance Committee Meeting 

BACKGROUND.  Since the last regular board meeting, the Budget & Finance Committee held 
two committee meetings.  The agendas are presented below.  Comments and notes are 
recorded separately (at the end of the agenda). 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT 

October 22, 2015  4:00 PM 

Boardroom, Terminal Building 
Monterey Regional Airport 

(Unless you are a public safety official, please turn off your cell phone or place it on vibrate mode during the meeting.)  

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. COMMUNICATIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(Any person may address the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Finance Committee at this time.  Presentations 
should not exceed three (3) minutes, should be directed to an item NOT on today’s agenda, and should be within the 
jurisdiction of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board.  Though not required, the Monterey Peninsula Airport 
District Board appreciates your cooperation in completing a speaker request form available on the staff table. Please 
give the completed form to the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Secretary. Comments concerning matters set forth 
on this agenda will be heard at the time the matter is considered.) 

D. REGULAR AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS 

Review 1. Receive Presentation from Eugene Ma, Audit Partner, MGO,
and Review the Draft FY 2015 Audited Financial Statements

Discussion 2. Future Agenda Items/Finance Committee Schedule

E. ADJOURNMENT 

AGENDA DEADLINE 

This is the final Agenda that has been posted on the bulletin board outside the District Offices in the 
Terminal Building at the Monterey Peninsula Airport no less than 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Notes/comments from 10/22/2015 Finance Committee Meeting: 
• The meeting was called to order by Chair Sabo



2 
 

• The meeting was attended by board members Bill Sabo and Carl Miller; Eugene Ma, 
Audit Partner, MGO attended and presented the draft audited financials 

• There were no communications or public comments. 
• The meeting was adjourned by Chair Sabo 

 
 
 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MONTEREY PENINSULA AIRPORT DISTRICT  

November 2, 2015  1:30 PM  
Boardroom, Terminal Building 

Monterey Regional Airport 
 
(Unless you are a public safety official, please turn off your cell phone or place it on vibrate mode during the meeting.)   
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. COMMUNICATIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS / INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
(Any person may address the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Finance Committee at this time.  Presentations 
should not exceed three (3) minutes, should be directed to an item NOT on today’s agenda, and should be within the 
jurisdiction of the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Board.  Though not required, the Monterey Peninsula Airport 
District Board appreciates your cooperation in completing a speaker request form available on the staff table. Please 
give the completed form to the Monterey Peninsula Airport District Secretary. Comments concerning matters set forth 
on this agenda will be heard at the time the matter is considered.) 
 
D. REGULAR AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Review  1. September 2015 & FYTD (FY 2016) Financial Statements 
 
 Review  2. Accounts Receivable Aged Invoice Report 
 
 Update  3. Cash Position Update 
 
 Review  4. FY 2015 Audit Plan & Final Schedule 
 
 Discussion  5. Future Agenda Items/Finance Committee Schedule 
 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 

AGENDA DEADLINE 
 
This is the final Agenda that has been posted on the bulletin board outside the District Offices in the 
Terminal Building at the Monterey Peninsula Airport no less than 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 



3 
 

Notes/comments from 11/02/2015 Finance Committee Meeting: 
• The meeting was called to order by Chair Sabo at 1:42 p.m. 
• The meeting was attended by board members Bill Sabo and Carl Miller; Executive 

Director  Mike La Pier and Jerry Merritt were present. 
• There were no communications or public comments. 
• September 2015 & FYTD (FY 2016) Financial Statements: 

 Presented Financial Summary for September 2015 (FY16), 
 Presented variance analysis, 
 Operating revenue was 2% or $12,595 below plan for September, 

 Categories of operating revenue above plan were: 
• Terminal rents, 
• Terminal concessions, 
• Taxi operator permits & trip fees, 
• Rental car concessions, 
• GA landing fees, and 
• Other operating revenue. 

 All other categories of operating revenue were on or below plan 
 Staff answered questions regarding: 

• Fuel flowage fees – why down when GA landing fees are above 
plan?  Is a trend emerging?  Answer – unknown – still 
investigating, 

• Why is parking concession revenue down – but rental car 
concession revenue slightly above plan?  Answer – still 
investigating – change in passenger dynamics? 

• One-time revenue (Other Operating Revenue) was interest 
($2,308) on SB 90 reimbursements from the State of California. 

 FYTD Operating Revenue was 1% or $28,959 above plan 
 September operating expense was 13% ($100,142) below plan 

 Primarily due to phasing 
 Staff clarified notes to the September variance analysis regarding airfield 

repair and maintenance (Maintenance), other services (Operations) 
 Staff answered questions (outside the scope of the September variance 

analysis) regarding several expense lines in several departments asked 
by Director Sabo, specifically regarding: 

• Personnel Recruitment & Pre-Employment Expense – F&A, 
• Salaries & Wages – P&D, 
• CalPERs Retirement – P&D, and 
• Salaries & Wages – Operations. 

 FYTD Operating Expense was 10% or $226,980 below plan 
 Operating income was 223% or $87,478 above plan for September, due to below 

plan operating expense 
 Operating income FYTD was 1509% or $255,939 above plan, due to: 

 above plan operating revenue, and 
 below plan operating expense 



4 

• Accounts Receivable Aged Invoice Report:
 reviewed the distribution of aged receivables for the month of September,
 only 1.3% or $5,374 is over 60 days old, and
 reviewed the aged A/R detail as of 10/31/2015

• Cash Position Update:
 reviewed operating cash position for September & FY 2016, and
 reviewed investment balance at 09/30/2015

• FY 2015 Audit Plan & Schedule
 had expected bound (finished) copies of audited financial statements and

management letter – did not arrive,
 finance committee (acting as audit committee) met with MGO on 10/22/15, and
 acceptance of audited financials will be placed on the consent agenda for the

November 18 Adjourned Board Meeting with the support of the finance
committee.

• Future Agenda Items/Finance Committee Schedule:
 With the support of the finance committee, the following items will be placed on

the consent agenda for the November 18 Adjourned Board Meeting:
 Fleet Management Policy, and
 Investment Policy.

 scheduled the next finance committee meeting for Wednesday, December 2, at
1:30 p.m.

• Meeting adjourned by committee chair Sabo at 2:50 p.m.


	Agenda -Adjourned Meeting  11182015
	A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
	E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS    (10:15AM – 10:30AM Estimated)
	G. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS                     (10:30AM – 10:45AM Estimated)


	Draft Minutes -  Regular Meeting 10142015
	A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
	Chair Sabo called to order the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at 9:55am. Directors Miller and Searle were present. Director Leffel arrived at 10:00am. The following District officers were present: Board Secretary Posey, Auditor Merritt, Exe...
	E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS
	G. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS


	Staff Report FY15 Audited Financial Statements E-2
	Fleet Management Policy 120115
	Staff Report Investment Policy E-4
	MPAD Investment  Policy E-4
	Monterey Peninsula Airport District:  Investment Policy
	Monterey Peninsula Airport District:  Investment Policy
	Monterey Peninsula Airport District:  Investment Policy
	Monterey Peninsula Airport District:  Investment Policy
	Monterey Peninsula Airport District:  Investment Policy

	Air Service Report 11182015
	Staff Report for Managers' Report - Financial Summary for September 2015  Item G
	October 2015 Ops Report
	TO:  Michael La Pier, Executive Director
	FROM: Operations Manager Griggs
	DATE:  November 5, 2015
	SUBJ:  Operations Report

	November 1
	Oct 2015 PD Board Report
	TO:  Michael La Pier, Executive Director
	FROM: Police Chief Jeff Hoyne
	DATE:  November 2, 2015

	15-10 Airport Board Report
	15-10 Airport Incident Details
	Monthly Cap Projects Report Cover Sheet-November 2015
	Staff Report for Committee Reports - Finance Committee for November 2015  Item I a ii
	A. CALL TO ORDER
	A. CALL TO ORDER

	ADPE91C.tmp
	A. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
	E. CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION ITEMS    (10:15AM – 10:30AM Estimated)
	G. ACCEPTANCE OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS                     (10:30AM – 10:45AM Estimated)





